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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information
This Listing Statement and the documents incorporated into this Listing Statement
contain “forwardlooking statements” and “forward-looking information” within the
meaning of applicable securities laws (forward-looking information and forward-looking
statements being collectively hereinafter referred to as “forward-looking statements”).
Such forward-looking statements are based on expectations, estimates and projections
as at the date of this Listing Statement or the dates of the documents incorporated
herein, as applicable. Any statements that involve discussions with respect to
predictions, expectations, beliefs, plans, projections, objectives, assumptions or future
events or performance (often but not always using phrases such as “expects” or “does
not expect”, “is expected”, “anticipates” or “does not anticipate”, “plans”, “budget”,
“scheduled”, “forecasts”, “estimates”, “believes” or “intends”, or variations of such words
and phrases, or stating that certain actions, events or results “may” or “could”, “would”,
“should”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved) are not statements of historical
fact and may be forward-looking statements and are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements
and information concerning: the intentions, plans and future actions of Arcturus;
statements relating to the business and future activities of Arcturus after the date of this
Listing Statement; market position, ability to compete and future financial or operating
performance of Arcturus after the date of this Listing Statement; statements based on
the audited and unaudited financial statements of Arcturus included as Appendices to
this Listing Statement; anticipated developments in operations; the future demand for
Arcturus’s products; the results of development of products and the timing thereof; the
timing and amount of estimated capital expenditure in respect of the business of
Arcturus; operating expenditures; success of marketing activities; estimated budgets;
currency fluctuations; requirements for additional capital; government regulation;
limitations on insurance coverage; the timing and possible outcome of litigation in future
periods; the timing and possible outcome of regulatory and permitting matters; goals;
strategies; future growth; planned business activities and planned future acquisitions; the
adequacy of financial resources; and other events or conditions that may occur in the
future. Forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs of Arcturus’s management,
as well as on assumptions, which such management believes to be reasonable based
on information currently available at the time such statements were made. However, by
their nature, forward-looking statements are based on assumptions and involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of risks, uncertainties and other
factors which could cause actual events or results to differ from those expressed or
implied by the forwardlooking statements, including, without limitation those risks
outlined in Sections 6 and 17 of this Listing Statement. The list of risk factors set out in
this Listing Statement is not exhaustive of the factors that may affect any forward-looking
statements of Arcturus. Forward-looking statements are statements about the future and
are inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statements as a result of the matters set out or incorporated by
reference in this Listing Statement generally and certain economic and business factors,
some of which may be beyond the control of Arcturus. In addition, recent unprecedented
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events in the world economy and global financial and credit markets have resulted in
high market and commodity volatility and a contraction in debt and equity markets, which
could have a particularly significant, detrimental and unpredictable effect on forwardlooking statements. Arcturus does not intend, and does not assume any obligation, to
update any forward-looking statements, other than as required by applicable law. For all
of these reasons, Arcturus’s securityholders should not place undue reliance on forwardlooking statements.
ITEM 1

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
“Asset Purchase
Agreement”

means the Asset Purchase Agreement between Arcturus,
Growthstar Technologies Inc., Ultimate Energy Savings
Canada Inc., and Robert Huston and dated October 1, 2015;

“BCBCA”

means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia);

“Arcturus” or the
“Company”

means Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc.;

“Arcturus
Shares”

means the common shares of Arcturus;

“Arcturus
Warrants”

means the share purchase warrants of Arcturus, each of
which entitles the holder to acquire one Arcturus Share at a
price of $0.15 until December 12, 2016;

“Board” or
“Board of
Directors”

means the board of directors of Arcturus;

“Computershare”

means Computershare Investor Services Inc.;

“CSE”

means the Canadian Securities Exchange;

“Employment
Agreement”

means the Employment Agreement between Arcturus and
Robert Huston;

“NEO”

means an individual who acted as a CEO or CFO and each
of the three most highly compensated executive officers, or
the three most highly compensated individuals acting in a
similar capacity, other than the CEO and CFO, at the end of
the most recently completed financial year whose total
compensation was, individually, more than $150,000, for that
financial year;

“LED Business”

means the proposed business to develop and sell LED
lighting solutions, predominantly using the assets acquired
through the Asset Purchase Agreement;
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“Listing
Statement”

means this CSE Form 2A;

“Related Person”

means an insider, which has the meaning set forth in the
Securities Act (British Columbia) being:
(a) a director or senior officer of Arcturus;
(b) a director or senior officer of a person that is an insider of
Arcturus;
(c) a person who beneficially owns or controls, directly or
indirectly, voting shares carrying more than 10% of the
voting rights attached to all outstanding voting shares of
Arcturus; or
(d) Arcturus if it holds any of its own securities;

ITEM 2
2.1

“TSXV”

means the TSX Venture Exchange;

“Ultimate
Energy”

means Ultimate Energy Savings Canada Inc., a company
wholly owned by Robert Huston; and

“Units”

has the meaning ascribed to it in section 3.1 of this Listing
Statement.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Corporate Name and Head Office
The Company’s full corporate name is Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc. It has its
head office at 5-9079 Shaughnessy Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6P 6R9 and
its registered and records office at 1750-1185 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V6E 4E6.

2.2

Jurisdiction of Incorporation
The Company was incorporated under the Company Act (British Columbia) on May 31,
1984, under the name “Golden Rock Resources Ltd.”. The Company subsequently
changed its name to “Bismillah Ventures Inc.” and “Royal Rock Ventures Inc.” before
adopting the name “Bi-Optic Ventures Inc.” on April 6, 2001. The Company changed
change its name to “Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc.” after receiving conditional
approval to list on the CSE.

2.3

Intercorporate Relationships
The Company does not have any subsidiaries.
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2.4

Fundamental Change
The Company is not requalifying following a fundamental change or proposing an
acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement.

2.5

Non-Corporate Issuers and Issuers Incorporated Outside of Canada
Arcturus is not a non-corporate issuer nor is it incorporated outside of Canada.

ITEM 3
3.1

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS
General Development of the Business
Arcturus was incorporated on May 31, 1984, and the Arcturus Shares were listed on the
TSXV on August 18, 2003.
Three Year History
Since March 1, 2012, Arcturus has had no operating business and management has
been focused on reviewing strategic acquisition opportunities.
On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 790,790 Arcturus Shares to insiders to settle debts of
$395,395. On October 22, 2014, Arcturus effected a ten-for-one reverse split of the
Arcturus Shares. All share amounts have been restated on a retroactive basis. On
December 12, 2014, the Company issued 10,000,000 units (each a “Unit”) for proceeds
of $500,000, including 500,000 Units sold to insiders for $25,000. The Units consisted of
one common share and one Arcturus Warrant exercisable at $0.15 per share, and
expiring on December 12, 2015. On December 12, 2015 Arcturus extended the expiry
of the Arcturus Warrants to December 12, 2016.
On October 1, 2015, Arcturus entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement to purchase
various LED lighting assets, rights, and intellectual property from each of: Growthstar
Technologies Inc., Ultimate Energy Savings Canada Inc., and Robert Huston. Once
aggregated, the assets will form the basis of the LED Business. The Asset Purchase
Agreement is conditional on, among other things, Arcturus receiving conditional approval
to list on the CSE.
The assets to be acquired to create the LED Business include lighting inventory,
intellectual property, certain domain names, customer lists, accounts receivable, and
certain unfilled purchase sales orders. The LED Business will be focused on the
development and sale of LED lighting technology for use in agriculture and industrial
settings, and for certain home and workplace purposes.
The purchases of the assets under the Assets Purchase Agreement do not qualify as
“Significant Acquisitions” under National Instrument 51-102 Continuous Disclosure
Obligations or National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus Requirements.
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3.2

Significant Acquisitions and Dispositions
Arcturus has not completed a significant acquisition nor are any significant probable
acquisitions proposed by Arcturus for which financial statements would be required
under National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus Requirements if this Listing
Statement were a prospectus.
Arcturus has not completed any significant disposition during its most recently completed
financial year or the current financial year for which pro-forma financial statements would
be required under National Instrument 41-101 General Prospectus Requirements if this
Listing Statement were a prospectus.

3.3

Material Trends, Commitments, Events, and Uncertainties
As an early stage company, Arcturus anticipates requiring additional capital to support
the operations of the LED Business. In the past, Arcturus has raised, by way of equity
financing, considerable funds to meet its capital needs. There is no guarantee that
Arcturus will be able to continue to raise the funds needed for its business. Failure to
raise the necessary funds in a timely fashion will limit Arcturus’s growth and threaten its
ability to continue as a going concern.
Although Arcturus believes that the LED Business will provide a good foundation for
marketing into the growing agricultural, industrial, commercial, and residential markets
for LED technology, it is uncertain and not foreseeable whether the LED Business will be
profitable. The fast pace of technological change, consolidation of sales channels, and
innovation among competitors may materially affect the LED Business and Arcturus’s
financial condition and operations. There are significant risks associated with Arcturus’s
business, as described in Section 17 – Risk Factors.

ITEM 4
4.1

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
General
(1) General Overview
Arcturus is an early stage company based in Vancouver, British Columbia. Following
completion of the transactions contemplated in the Asset Purchase Agreement, Arcturus
intends to commence the LED Business and will develop and market LED lighting
solutions to agricultural, industrial, institutional, and individual consumers. Since the
LED Business is not currently operating, it is not possible for Arcturus to predict revenue
and sales quantities or to estimate the demand for the LED Business’s products.
(a)

Business Objectives (12 Months)

Arcturus’s primary goal in the 12 months following the date of this Listing Statement
is to organize the inventory, rights and intellectual property acquired through the
Asset Purchase Agreement in order for the LED Business to commence operations.
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Assuming the transactions contemplated in the Asset Purchase Agreement are
completed, Arcturus will work towards the following objectives:
(i)

Launching the LED Business and commencing initial sales;

(ii)

Developing an ongoing and sustainable customer base; and

(iii)

Conducting ongoing research and development focused on enhancing
products offered by the LED Business.

(b) Milestones
In order to achieve the business objectives for the forthcoming 12-month period,
Arcturus will work towards the following milestones:
Objective

Milestone

Timeframe

Expected Cost

Launch the LED
Business



Complete the Asset Purchase Agreement

January 2016



Secure Robert Huston’s service as CEO
through the Consulting Contract

January 2016



Rebrand and aggregate online assets

January 2016

$60,000 &
1,500,000 Arcturus
Shares
1,000,000 Arcturus
Shares
nil



Develop product technical specifications for
new products

February 2016

nil



Secure exclusive supply agreements with
new suppliers for LED lighting products

March 2016

nil



Enhance online presence to improve ease
of use and increase sales conversion rates

January 2016

nil



Market and promote the LED Business

Throughout 12
months

$83,000



Participate in institutional and government
tendering opportunities

Throughout 12
months

nil



Improve product spectrum optimization

March 2016

nil



Improve daylight variation modulation

June 2016

nil

Develop a
customer base

Conduct
Research and
Development
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(c)

Available Capital and Use of Funds

Arcturus had working capital of $(53,140) as of December 31, 2015.
Arcturus’s ability to continue operations is dependent upon successfully raising the
necessary financing to fund ongoing expenses and support the growth of the LED
Business. Financing has typically been made available to Arcturus through the issuance
of securities and through debt financing from related parties.
Arcturus anticipates raising up to $150,000 by completing a private placement of up to
3,000,000 units, each unit consisting of an Arcturus Share and a warrant exercisable for
$0.10 into an Arcturus Share and expiring six months from the date of issuance, subject
to acceleration in the event the Arcturus Shares trade at a price of $0.15 or higher.
There is no assurance that Arcturus will be successful in raising funds through the
issuance of securities, or that related or other parties will provide future debt financing.
The growth of the LED Business may be negatively impacted if Arcturus is not
successful in raising additional funds. The following table describes the Arcturus’s
proposed use of funds for the year following January 1, 2016 assuming no additional
funds are raised:
Description of Expenditure
Costs to complete listing on the CSE
Regulatory fees
Marketing services
Web based advertising
Cost to complete the LED Business purchase
Audit, legal & accounting
Consulting and management fees
Rent services
Total 12 Month Expenditure (without sales revenues)

Funds to be Expended
$
10,000
$
5,000
$
83,000
$
70,000
$
60,000
$
42,000
$ 120,000
$
42,000
$ 432,000

(2) Principal Products
Arcturus has entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement, which upon completion of
the transactions contemplated therein, will give rise to the LED Business. The LED
Business’s products will be LED lighting fixtures for use in agricultural, industrial,
institutional, commercial and residential applications. Arcturus plans to focus on the
horticultural lighting market with LED fixtures that maximize lighting through the use
of broad spectrum and infrared LEDs, minimize heat, and operate more efficiently
than conventional lighting options.
(a)

Methods of Distribution

Arcturus anticipates distributing products primarily through online channels. Among
the assets acquired pursuant to the Assets Purchase Agreement are various internet
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websites and their associated domain names including “GrowthStarLED.com”,
“MCOBGrowlights.com”, “IndoorJungle.ca”, and “LEDCanada.com”. Arcturus plans
to use these existing websites and domain names to promote, market, and sell its
products.
(b)

Revenue from Products

Arcturus does not generate any revenue at this time.
(c)

Stage of Development

The LED Business will rely on marketing products currently manufactured by third
party manufacturers and relying on third party manufacturers to update products as
technology improves.
Arcturus will perform ongoing research and development, and Arcturus will work on
developing enhancements that calibrate lighting to maximize certain components of
the spectrum best suited for different applications including commercial and
agricultural uses. Arcturus will also work to develop lighting routines that imitate
natural lighting cycles and which will be targeted for agricultural uses. Arcturus is in
the early stages of those developments. The development initiatives are not
expected to incur material costs, and will be conducted in-house.
It is not possible at this time to determine when product developments will reach
commercial production, their costs, or their anticipated timing.
(3) Production and Sales
(a)

Production

The proposed LED Business will work with third party manufacturers to manage
production. Arcturus anticipates entering into exclusive supply agreements with
certain suppliers.
(b)

Material Leases or Mortgages

Arcturus has no current material leases or mortgages. Arcturus currently pays
$2,896 per month in combined rent and administrative costs to a company controlled
by Scott McDermid, a director.
(c)

Specialized Skills and Knowledge

The success of the planned LED Business will rely predominantly on the following
skills:




online marketing;
online distribution;
product sourcing; and
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LED technology awareness.

In anticipation of the Asset Purchase Agreement, and as a condition thereto, Robert
Huston became Chief Executive Officer of Arcturus. Mr. Huston has experience
developing LED fixtures, managing an online retail system, and promoting LED
lighting and fixtures.
(d)

Sourcing and Supply of Inputs

The proposed LED Business will require supplies of LED lighting equipment and
fixtures. Cost-competitive suppliers of LED lighting equipment and fixtures are
predominantly located in China. The price of this equipment has recently declined
due to ongoing technological developments and competition amongst suppliers.
(e)

Intangible and Intellectual Property

Arcturus, upon completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement, will possess certain
intangible property composed of websites and domain names. The websites and
domain names have previously been successful at drawing online traffic and online
purchases. Such domain names are considered a critical asset for Arcturus.
(f)

Seasonality

The planned LED Business is not yet operational so no seasonality has been
detected. It is assumed, based on the experience of the officers of Arcturus, that
there will be no material seasonality, but factors including holidays, weather, and
daylight fluctuations may refute this assumption.
(g)

Material Renegotiations (12 months)

Arcturus has no contracts or subcontracts which, if renegotiated or terminated, would
materially affect Arcturus’s operations. Arcturus has made certain plans around the
LED Business which will not proceed if the Asset Purchase Agreement is terminated.
(h)

Environmental Protection Requirements

The introduction of environmental protection requirements would not affect Arcturus’s
capital expenditures, earnings, or competitive position. If Arcturus does enter into
the LED Business, the introduction of environmental protection requirements should
have no impact on operations and may result in an increase in demand for LED
lighting solutions and fixtures.
(i)

Employees

Arcturus currently employs only Mr. Huston, Arcturus’s CEO. All other management
functions are performed by officers acting as contractors.
(j)

Foreign Operations
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Arcturus has no foreign operations.
(k)

Substantial Contracts

Arcturus has no substantial contracts, aside from the Asset Purchase Agreement.
Arcturus has entered into supplier contracts.
(l)

Material Renegotiations (Current Year)

Arcturus has no significant contracts or sub-contracts that could be subject to
cancellation or renegotiation.
(4) Competitive Condition
The planned LED Business will be focused on online sales of LED solutions within
Canada and the USA. The LED Business will compete against other online and
traditional retail channels including Amazon.ca, Home Hardware, Home Depot, and
Wal-Mart, as well as independent retailers. The growth of online retailing of LED
lighting solutions has compressed margins and made comparison shopping easier.
Traditional brick-and-mortar retailers typically sell a smaller range of LED lighting
solutions than are available online, but are able to generate higher margins on sales.
It is not possible at this stage, before the LED Business has been started, to
effectively evaluate the LED Business’s competitive position.
(5) Lending Policies
Arcturus does not engage in lending.
(6) Bankruptcy and Receivership Proceedings
Arcturus is not, and has not been subject to bankruptcy, receivership, or similar
proceedings within the past three years.
(7) Material Restructuring Transactions
During 2014, Arcturus restructured the Arcturus Shares and its debts.
On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 790,790 Arcturus Shares to insiders to settle debts
of $395,395. On October 22, 2014, Arcturus effected a ten-for-one reverse split of
Arcturus Shares. All share amounts have been restated on a retroactive basis. On
December 12, 2014, the Company issued 10,000,000 Units for proceeds of
$500,000, including 500,000 Units sold to insiders for $25,000.
On October 22, 2014, Arcturus effected a ten-for-one reverse split of its issued and
outstanding common shares.
(8) Social or Environmental Policies Fundamental to Operations
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Arcturus has no social or environmental policies that are fundamental to its
operations.
ITEM 5
5.1

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Annual Information
Arcturus’s audited financial statements for the years ended February 28, 2015, 2014,
and 2013, are attached hereto as Appendix “D” and Appendix “E” and are available on
SEDAR. The following financial data summarizes selected financial data for Arcturus
prepared in accordance with IFRS for the three years ended February 28, 2015, 2014
and 2013 and for the six month period ended August 31, 2015. The information
presented below is derived from Arcturus’s annual financial statements which were
audited by Arcturus’s independent auditor and from Arcturus’s quarterly unaudited
financial statements. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with
Arcturus’s annual financial statements and related notes thereto.

Total Revenue
Expenses
Loss on settlement of debt
Net loss and total loss from continuing
operations
Basic and diluted loss per share
Working capital
Total Assets
Total long term liabilities
Cash dividends per share

5.2

For the Six Months
August 31, 2015
nil
138,912
nil
(138,912)
(0.01)
97,080
140,493
nil
nil

For the Year Ended February 28,
2015
2014
2013
nil
nil
nil
197,290
124,536
174,101
(197,698)
nil
nil
(394,988)
(0.08)
235,815
281,776
nil
nil

(124,536)
(0.06)
(462,789)
3,764
nil
nil

(174,101)
(0.06)
(338,957)
6,876
nil
nil

Quarterly Information
The following quarterly data is compiled from Arcturus’s audited annual financial
statements ending February 28, 2015, and 2014, as well as from Arcturus’s unaudited
quarterly financial statements.

Revenue
Net Loss and Total
Loss from continuing
operations
Basic and diluted loss
per share

5.3

For the Quarter Ended
May 31
Feb 28
2014
2014
nil
nil

Feb 28
2015
nil

Nov 30
2014
nil

Aug 31
2014
nil

(76,429)

(38,751)

(44,128)

(235,680)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.02)

(0.09)

Nov 30
2013
nil

Aug 31
2013
nil

May 31
2014
nil

(27,724)

(31,947)

(31,979)

(32,886)

(0.01)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.02)

Dividends
There are no restrictions that could prevent Arcturus from paying dividends. Arcturus has
not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near
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future. Arcturus is in the start-up phase and will likely retain earnings, if any, to finance
the operations, development, and growth of the LED Business. The payment of
dividends in the future will depend on Arcturus’s earnings and financial condition and
such other factors as the Board of Directors may consider appropriate.
5.4

Foreign GAAP
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which Arcturus is
required to reconcile to IFRS. Arcturus has determined that there are no material
differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS for the financial information disclosed in this
Listing Statement and the included financial statements.

ITEM 6
6.1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Annual MD&A
Appendix “A” contains Arcturus’s Annual MD&A for the year ended February 28, 2015.

6.2

Interim MD&A
Appendix “B” contains Arcturus’s Quarterly MD&A for the six months ended August 31,
2015.

ITEM 7

MARKET FOR SECURITIES
The Arcturus Shares currently trade on the NEX Board of the TSXV under the symbol
“OP.H”. Arcturus completed a 10-SB registration statement in 2003 with the US
Securities and Exchange Commission and received clearance from regulatory
authorities to have its shares commence trading on the NASD Electronic Bulletin Board
under the symbol “BOVKF.OB”.
In connection with the listing of the Arcturus Shares on the CSE, Arcturus expects to
delist from the TSXV and change its name to “Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc.”.
The trading symbol for Arcturus Shares on the CSE is expected to be “AGS”.

ITEM 8

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION
There have been no material changes to the share and loan capital of Arcturus since
February 28, 2015.
The following table sets out the capitalization of Arcturus as of the date of this Listing
Statement:
Designation of Security
Common shares without par value
Share purchase warrants coverable at
$0.15 per warrant into common shares
and expiring December 12, 2016.
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Number of Securities
Authorized to be Issued
Unlimited
10,000,000

Outstanding as of the Date
of this Listing Statement(1)
15,392,009
10,000,000

(1) The table includes the 1,500,000 Arcturus Shares issuable as partial consideration for the Asset
Purchase Agreement, the 1,000,000 Arcturus Shares issuable under the Employment Agreement, and
50,000 Arcturus Shares issuable to Moses Yoon upon Arcturus listing on the CSE (see Item 22 for
further details).

For further details about Arcturus’s securities see Item 10.
ITEM 9

OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES
Arcturus does not have a stock option plan. Stock options may be granted to directors,
officers, employees and consultants of Arcturus through a resolution of the Board of
Directors. As of the date of this Listing Statement there are no outstanding stock options.

ITEM 10
10.1

DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES

General
Arcturus is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares without par value
of which there are 12,842,009 issued and outstanding, an additional 2,500,000 issuable
to Mr. Huston and Ultimate Energy immediately upon concluding the Asset Purchase
Agreement and entering into the Employment Agreement, and 50,000 issuable under
the consulting agreement with Moses Yoon upon listing on the CSE. The holders of
Arcturus Shares are entitled to dividends if, as, and when declared by the directors, to
one vote per share at meetings of the shareholders of Arcturus, and upon liquidation, to
receive such assets of Arcturus as are distributable to the holders of the Arcturus
Shares. There are no rights of redemption, retraction, purchase for cancellation or to
surrender nor are there sinking or purchase fund provisions. There are no restrictions on
the Company’s ability to issue further Arcturus Shares and there are no provisions
requiring the holders of Arcturus Shares to contribute additional capital.

10.2

Debt Securities
Arcturus has no debt securities issued and outstanding.

10.4

Other Securities
Other than the Arcturus Shares and the Arcturus Warrants convertible each into one
Arcturus Share for $0.15 per share and expiring on December 12, 2016, Arcturus has no
other debt or equity securities outstanding as of the date of this Listing Statement.

10.5

Modification of Terms
Subject to the BCBCA, the company may:
(1) by directors’ resolution, in each case as determined by the directors:
(a)

create one or more classes of shares or, if none of the shares of a class or
series of shares are allotted or issued, eliminate that class or series of shares;

FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT
January 14, 2016
Page 14
Legal*16555931.4

(b)

eliminate that class or series of shares, increase reduce or eliminate the
maximum number of shares authorized for issue for any class or series of
shares;

(c)

decrease par value or increase par value for classes of shares that have not
been allotted; and

(d)

subdivide any unissued or fully paid shares;

(2) by directors’ resolution consolidate any or all of its unissued or fully paid issued
shares; and
(3) by special resolution:

10.6

(a)

create special rights or restrictions for shares of any class or series, whether
or not those shares have been issued; and

(b)

vary or delete special rights or restrictions attached to the shares of any class
or series of shares, whether or not they have been issued.

Other Attributes
Subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to the shares of any class or series
and the BCBCA, and provided Arcturus is not insolvent or making the payment or
providing the consideration would not render Arcturus insolvent, Arcturus may, if
authorized by the directors, purchase or otherwise acquire any of its shares at the price
and upon the terms determined by the directors.

10.7

Prior Sales
On December 12, 2014, Arcturus issued 10,000,000 Units at $0.05 per Unit for proceeds
of $500,000.
Arcturus has not sold any securities during the 12 months preceding this Listing
Statement.
Arcturus intends to issue the following securities upon listing on the CSE:
(i)

1,500,000 Arcturus Shares to Ultimate Energy as partial consideration
for the Asset Purchase Agreement;

(ii)

1,000,000 Arcturus Shares to Robert Huston pursuant to the
Employment Agreement; and

(iii)

50,000 Arcturus Shares to Moses Yoon as partial consideration for him
entering into a consulting agreement (see Item 22 for further details).

Arcturus anticipates raising up to $150,000 by completing a private placement of up to
3,000,000 units, each unit consisting of one Arcturus Share and one share purchase
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warrant exercisable for $0.10 into an Arcturus Share and expiring six months from the
date of issuance.
Other than the distributions in the paragraphs above, Arcturus has no specific and
immediate plans to sell or issue additional securities.
10.8

Stock Exchange Price
Arcturus’s common shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the
symbol “OP.H”. Trading of Arcturus Shares was halted upon the announcement of the
Asset Purchase Agreement on October 7, 2015 and remains halted as of the date of this
Listing Statement. The following table sets out the price ranges and trading volume of
Arcturus Shares since the beginning of Arcturus’s last completed quarter:
Month
October 1-5, 2015
September, 2015
August, 2015
July, 2015
June, 2015

High ($)
0.070
0.060
0.080
0.080
0.080

Low ($)
0.055
0.055
0.050
0.060
0.055

Trading Volume
100,000
140,250
481,000
386,850
893,475

The following table sets out the price ranges and trading volume of Arcturus Shares on a
quarterly basis for seven quarters preceding June 1, 2015:
Quarter Ended
May 31, 2015
February 28, 2015
November 30, 2014
August 31, 2014
May 31, 2014
February 28, 2014
November 30, 2013

ITEM 11

High ($)
0.170
0.220
0.100
0.045
0.100
0.035
0.005

Low ($)
0.065
0.060
0.001
0.025
0.030
0.005
0.005

Trading Volume
1,158,940
549,321
11,480,900
2,790,200
4,936,960
1,165,968
110,950

ESCROWED SECURITIES

Arcturus will issue to Ultimate Energy 1,500,000 Arcturus Shares on completion of the
Asset Purchase Agreement, and will issue to Robert Huston 1,000,000 Arcturus Shares
upon entering into the Employment Agreement. These Arcturus Shares will be subject
to an escrow agreement and will be escrowed subject to the following release schedule:
On the date the Arcturus Shares are listed the CSE
(the “Listing Date”)
6 months after the Listing Date
12 months after the Listing Date
18 months after the Listing Date
24 months after the Listing Date
30 months after the Listing Date
36 months after the Listing Date
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1/10 of the escrow securities
1/6 of the remaining escrow securities
1/5 of the remaining escrow securities
1/4 of the remaining escrow securities
1/3 of the remaining escrow securities
1/2 of the remaining escrow securities
The remaining escrow securities

ITEM 12

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of the date of this Listing Statement, to the best of the knowledge of Arcturus, the
only persons who beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction
over, more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all of the outstanding shares of
Arcturus are as follows:
Shareholder and Municipality
of Residence
Robert Huston,
Vancouver, British Columbia
Michael Withrow,
Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam

Number of Common Shares
and Stock Options
2,500,000 Common Shares(1)
2,941,750 Common Shares
3,280,000 Warrants

Percentage of Common
Shares Owned of Record(2)
16.24% non-diluted
16.24% partially-diluted
19.11% non-diluted
33.32% partially-diluted(3)(4)

(1) The table includes shares that will be issuable immediately upon completion of the Asset Purchase
Agreement and entering into the Employment Agreement (see Item 22 for further details), but which are not
outstanding at the time of this Listing Statement. Mr. Huston’s securities include those of Ultimate Energy, a
company which he wholly owns.
(2) Based on 15,392,009 shares outstanding, including 1,500,000 that will be issued to Ultimate Energy upon
the completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement, to Mr. Huston personally upon entering into the
Employment Agreement, and those issuable to Mr. Yoon pursuant to his consulting agreement (see Item 22
for further details).
(3) 24.50% on a fully diluted basis, assuming all 10,000,000 Arcturus Warrants are exercised.
(4) Michael Withrow’s shares are of record only.

FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT
January 14, 2016
Page 17
Legal*16555931.4

ITEM 13
13.1

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Names, Occupations, Experience and Ownership
The below table includes the names, municipalities of residence, position, principal
occupations, and the number of voting securities that each of Arcturus’s directors and
officers beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control over, as of the date
hereof:

Name of Nominee, Current
Position(s) and Province or
State and Country of
Residence
Harry Chew
Director
Vancouver, British Columbia
Michael Withrow
Director
Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam
D. Scott McDermid
Director
Richmond, British Columbia
Robert Huston
Director, CEO
Vancouver, British Columbia

Occupation, Business or
Employment

Period as a
Director of
Arcturus

Certified General Accountant,
Self-employed, Owner Myntek
Management Services Inc.
CEO of Arcturus from May 2015
to October 2015;
CEO of Abbattis Bioceuticals
Corp. from February 2011 to
February 2015
Licensed commercial realtor,
property manager and builder

Since Feb
1999

Mr. Huston is currently self
employed and during the last
five years has worked in the
lighting industry in various
management roles.
Chartered Professional
Accountant, Founder and
Manager of Fehr & Associates.

Since Oct
2015

Common Shares of
Arcturus
Beneficially Owned
or Controlled

Percentage of
Issued Common
Shares of
Arcturus(1)

141,398

0.92%

2,941,750

19.11%

Nil

Nil

Since Dec
2014

Since Sep
2015

2,500,000
16.24%
Ann Fehr
N/A
CFO
West Vancouver, British
Columbia
Nil
Nil
Stephanie Vu
Customer service coordinator
N/A
Corporate Secretary
for Canaccord Genuity Inc.
Richmond, British Columbia
since 2014.
70,000
0.45%
(1) Non-diluted basis including 2,500,000 shares to be issued to Mr. Huston and Ultimate Energy as
partial consideration for the Asset Purchase Agreement and under the Employment Agreement, as
well as 50,000 shares to be issued to Mr. Yoon pursuant to a consulting agreement (see Item 22 for
further details). See Item 12 for fully partial and fully diluted position.

13.2

Periods of Service as Director
Data on the period of service as a director can be found in the table at 13.1. The term of
office for all of the directors continues until the end of the next Annual General Meeting
of Arcturus.

13.3

Security Holdings
As a group, the directors and executive officers own directly, or indirectly, or exercise
control or direction over an aggregate of 5,653,148 or approximately 36.73%, of the
common shares of Arcturus on an undiluted basis as at the date of this Listing
Statement.
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Further information about security holdings can be found in the table at 13.1.
13.4

Committees of the Board of Directors
Arcturus has one board committee, the Audit Committee, which currently consists of
Harry Chew, Michael Withrow and Scott McDermid.

13.5

Principal Occupation
Principal occupation information for each director can be found in the table at 13.1.

13.6

Corporate Cease Trade Orders of Bankruptcies
Other than as disclosed below, to the knowledge of Arcturus, no director or officer or
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of Arcturus to affect materially the
control of Arcturus, is, or within 10 years before the date of this Listing Statement has
been, a director or officer of any other Issuer that, while that person was acting in that
capacity:
(i)

was the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied
that company access to any exemption under securities legislation for a
period of more than 30 consecutive days;

(ii)

was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive
officer ceased to be a director or executive officer, in that company being
the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the
relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation,
for a period of more than 30 consecutive days;

(iii)

became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings,
arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver
manager, or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or

(iv)

within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or
insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement
or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver-manager, or
trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Ann Fehr was Chief Financial Officer of Global Uranium Corporation ("GU") on
September 27, 2010, when GU became subject to a cease-trade order as a result of
failure to file a complaint NI 43-101 technical report. SRK Consulting (Canada) Inc. then
prepared a compliant NI 43-101 Technical Report which was filed on SEDAR and the
cease-trade order was subsequently revoked. The cease trade order was lifted in all
jurisdictions on June 6, 2011.
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13.7

Penalties or Sanctions
To the knowledge of Arcturus, no director or officer of the Company, or a shareholder
holding sufficient securities of the Company to affect materially the control of the
Company, has: (i) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating
to Canadian securities legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has
entered into a settlement agreement with a Canadian securities regulatory authority; or
(ii) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory
body that would be likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an
investment decision.

13.8

Not Applicable

13.9

Not Applicable (Bankruptcy)

13.10 Conflicts of Interest
1) Rent and Administrative Services
Rent service is provided to Arcturus by a company controlled by Mr. McDermid, a
director.
2) Professional Fees
Some accounting services as well as the officer services of Ann Ferh will be provided
to Arcturus by an accounting firm owned by Ms. Fehr.
Mr. Withrow provides consulting services to Arcturus.
13.11 Management
1) Robert Huston
Robert Huston, age 49, became Chief Executive Officer of Arcturus on October 18
2015.
Mr. Huston has experience operating in the LED lighting and marketing industry. He
was founder of LED Canada.com and Director of Operations for Ultimate Energy
Savings Canada Inc.. Ultimate Energy Savings Canada Inc. is, to the knowledge of
Arcturus, still carrying on business as of the date of this Listing Statement.
Mr. Huston, operating under the Employment Agreement, works full time for
Arcturus.
The Employment Agreement includes non-competition and confidentiality provisions.
2) Ann Fehr
Ann Fehr, age 46, has been Chief Financial Officer of Arcturus since October 16,
2015.
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Ms. Fehr received her accounting designation in 1996 and has over 15 years senior
management experience including two years working in a high volume distribution
business. She founded Fehr & Associates in 2010 where she has provided
accounting services and certain consulting services to public companies. She has
experience with public company financial reporting as well as experience with tax
compliance and accounting. Fehr & Associates is, to the knowledge of Arcturus, still
carrying on business as of the date of this Listing Statement.
Ms. Fehr is not currently an employee of Arcturus and provides her services through
a consulting arrangement. In her capacity as CFO, Ms. Fehr devotes as much time
as needed to Arcturus and the affairs of Arcturus.
Ms. Fehr is a Chartered Professional Accountant and holds a bachelor’s degree from
the University of Calgary.
Ms. Fehr has not signed a non-compete or confidentiality agreement with Arcturus.
3) Stephanie Vu
Stephanie Vu, age 29, has been Corporate Secretary of Arcturus since October
2015.
Ms. Vu has experience working in capital markets. She currently works for
Canaccord Genuity Inc. where she has been employed since April 2014. Ms. Vu has
significant experience working with early stage public companies and CSE listed
companies. Ms. Vu has experience working with public company corporate
structures, regulatory compliance, and financings. Canaccord Genuity Inc. is, to the
knowledge of Arcturus, still carrying on business as of the date of this Listing
Statement.
Ms. Vu is not currently an employee of Arcturus and provides her services through a
consulting arrangement. In her capacity as Secretary, Ms. Vu devotes as much time
as needed to Arcturus and the affairs of Arcturus.
Ms. Vu studied business at Kwantlen Polytechnic University and has completed
Level 1 of the CFA Program.
Ms. Vu has signed a confidentially agreement.
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ITEM 14
14.1

ISSUED CAPITAL

Issued Capital Tables
Issued Capital
Number of Securities
(1)
(fully-diluted)

% of Issued
(non-diluted)

% of issued
(fully diluted)

15,392,009

25,392,009

100.00%

100.00%

Held by Related Persons or
employees of Arcturus or Related
Person of Arcturus, or by persons or
companies who beneficially own or
control, directly or indirectly, more
than a 5% voting position in Arcturus
(or who would beneficially own or
control, directly or indirectly, more
than a 5% voting position in Arcturus
upon exercise or conversion of other
securities (B)

5,444,772

8,724,772

35.37%

34.36%

Total Public Float (A – B)

9,947,237

16,667,237

64.63%

65.64%

2,500,000

2,500,000

16.24%

9.85%

12,892,009

22,892,009

83.76%

90.15%

Public Float
Total Outstanding (A)

Freely Tradable Float
Number of outstanding securities
subject to resale restrictions,
including restrictions imposed by
pooling or other arrangements or in
a shareholder agreement and
securities held by control block
holders (C)
Total Tradable Float (A-C)

(1) Include 2,500,000 Arcturus Shares issuable, but not yet issued, to Robert Huston and Ultimate Energy as consideration
for the Asset Purchase Agreement and the Employment Agreement and the 50,000 Arcturus Shares issuable, but not yet
issued, pursuant to the consulting agreement with Moses Yoon (see Item 22 for further details).
There is no restriction on trading these shares.
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Public Securityholders (Registered)
Size of Holdings

(1)

Number of
Holders(2)(3)

1-99 securities
100-499 securities
500-999 securities
1,000-1,999 securities
2,000 – 2,999 securities
3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities
5,000 or more securities

23
7
3
5
6
1
1
20

Total Number of
Securities(1)
341
1,583
1,800
6,122
13,500
3,250
4,000
1,268,327

(1) As at October 6, 2015.
(2) Does not include 1,500,000 shares issuable to Ultimate Energy as consideration for the Asset Purchase
Agreement or 1,000,000 common shares issuable to Mr. Huston under the Employment Agreement (see
Item 22 for further details).
(3) Does not include 50,000 shares issuable to Moses Yoon as consideration for a consulting agreement
(see Item 22 for further details).
There is no restriction on trading these shares.

Public Securityholders (Beneficial)
Size of Holdings

(1)

Number of
Holders

1-99 securities
100-499 securities
500-999 securities
1,000-1,999 securities
2,000 – 2,999 securities
3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities
5,000 or more securities

55
27
15
21
10
4
7
68

Total Number of
Securities
1,646
5,566
9,165
26,481
21,703
12,700
29,950
8,598,314

(1) As at October 8, 2015 and based upon a list of non-objecting beneficial owners provided to the
Company.

(1)

Non-Public Securityholders
Size of Holdings
1-99 securities
100-499 securities
500-999 securities
1,000-1,999 securities
2,000 – 2,999 securities
3,000 – 3,999 securities
4,000 – 4,999 securities
5,000 or more securities
(1) Based on information supplied by insiders of the Company.
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Number of
Holders

Total Number of
Securities

8

5,444,772

14.2

Convertible Securities
Description of Security

Number of Convertible
Securities Outstanding

Number of Listed Securities
Issuable upon Exercise

Warrants(1)
10,000,000
10,000,000
(1) Exercisable each into an Arcturus Shares for $0.15 per warrant and expiring December 12, 2016.

14.3

Listed Securities Reserved for Issuance not included in Section 14.2
There are no listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included in 14.2.

ITEM 15

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

1) Form 51-102F6
Appendix “C” contains Arcturus’s Form 51-102F6 as distributed in the Information
Circular dated September 3, 2015.
2) Subsequent Adjustments
The Employment Agreement stipulates that Mr. Huston will act as Chief Executive
Officer of Arcturus. As compensation, Robert Huston will receive $4,000 per month,
commencing in October 2015, and a performance bonus of 500,000 common shares
issuable following the first fiscal year in which Arcturus achieves revenue in excess of
$1,000,000.
ITEM 16

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

None of the current or former directors, executive officers, employees of Arcturus, the
proposed nominees for election to the Board, or their respective associates or affiliates,
are or have been indebted to Arcturus since the beginning of the last completed financial
year of Arcturus.
ITEM 17
17.1

RISK FACTORS

Risk Factors
This section discusses factors relating to Arcturus that should be considered by both
existing and potential investors. The information in this section is intended to serve as an
overview and should not be considered comprehensive and Arcturus may face risks and
uncertainties not discussed in this section, or not currently known to the management of
Arcturus, or that they deem to be immaterial. All risks to Arcturus have the potential to
influence its operations in a materially adverse manner.
Forward Looking Information
Certain information set out in this Listing Statement includes or is based upon
expectations, estimates, projections or other “forward looking information”. Such forward
looking information includes projections or estimates made by Arcturus about its future
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business operations. While such forward looking statements and the assumptions
underlying them are made in good faith and reflect Arcturus’s current judgment
regarding the direction of their business, actual results will almost certainly vary
(sometimes materially) from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions or
other type of performance suggested here.
(1) Risks to the Potential LED Business
(a)

No certainty that there will be an LED Business

Arcturus has entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement in order to acquire certain
assets which may be used to form the LED Business. There is no certainty that the
Asset Purchase Agreement will be completed. There is no certainty that the assets
acquired will be sufficient to commence the LED Business or that the Board of Directors
of Arcturus will approve the commencement of the LED Business.
(b)

Arcturus faces factors which may prevent the realization of LED Business
growth targets

Arcturus currently has no operations and no history of operations. Arcturus's growth
strategy contemplates completing the Asset Purchase Agreement and starting the LED
Business using the aforementioned acquired assets. There is a risk that these assets will
not be sufficient to commence the LED Business on time, on budget, or at all. The LED
Business may be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including some that are
discussed elsewhere in these risk factors and the following:


delays in obtaining, or conditions imposed by, regulatory approvals;



website design errors;



non-performance by third party contractors;



introduction of new products and technologies by competitors;



increases in supplier costs;



delays and challenges in receiving supplies from suppliers;



price and marketing competition by competitors;



faulty or low quality inventory;



contractor or operator errors;



major incidents and/or catastrophic events such as fires, explosions,
earthquakes, flooding or storms.
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As a result, there is a risk that Arcturus may not commence the LED Business and even
if the LED Business does commence, it may be delayed or be unable to compete
successfully and generate sales.
Arcturus’s LED Business may incur significant net losses in the future and may not
achieve or maintain profitability. Arcturus expects the LED Business to continue to
increase operating expenses as it implements initiatives to continue to grow its business.
If Arcturus does not achieve revenues to offset these expected operating expenses,
Arcturus will never be profitable.
(c)

The LED Business is largely dependent on the success of its websites

The success of Arcturus’s LED Business will partially depend on the success of its
websites. Arcturus plans to sell its products predominantly through its websites. There is
no guarantee that the websites will generate sufficient traffic to support the potential LED
Business. Even if users visit the websites, the websites may contain technical faults or
present user deterrents that reduce the conversion of visitors to customers. Potential
customers may be deterred from using the websites if they have concerns over financial
or identity theft.
(d)

The LED Business depends on IT infrastructure

Arcturus relies on computing devices to access, manage and develop its products and
deliver its services. A cyber-attack, malware, software virus, power outage, or other
event that renders a computer inoperative or limits or blocks access to the internet infrastructure may result in the loss of key data or even the corruption of data such that
Arcturus cannot provide the products it has contracted to deliver.
Hacks or denial of service attacks against infrastructure or resources used by Arcturus,
either directly owned and operated by Arcturus or purchased from or provided by third
parties, could have an adverse impact on Arcturus’s ability to deliver services and could
harm its business and operating results.
(e)

The LED Business faces significant competition

There is potential that Arcturus will face intense competition from other companies,
some of which can be expected to have longer operating histories and greater financial
resources and product and marketing experience than Arcturus. Some of these
companies produce their own products, allowing them to better control their supply chain
and therefore control product quality to a greater extent than possible by Arcturus.
Increased competition by larger and better-financed competitors could materially and
adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations of Arcturus.
Because of the early stage of the industry in which Arcturus intends to operate, Arcturus
expects to face additional competition from new entrants. If the number of users of LED
lighting solutions in Canada and the USA increase, the demand for products will
increase and Arcturus expects that competition will become more intense, as current
and future competitors begin to offer an increasing number of diversified products.
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To be competitive, Arcturus will require a continued high level of investment in research
and development, supplier management, marketing, sales and customer support.
Arcturus may not have sufficient resources to maintain research and development,
supplier management, marketing, sales and customer support efforts on a competitive
basis which could materially and adversely affect the business, financial condition and
results of operations of Arcturus.
(f)

The LED Business’s success depends on attracting and retaining key
management personnel

If Arcturus fails to attract and retain key management, it may be unable to successfully
develop or operate its potential LED Business. Arcturus will need to expand and
effectively manage its managerial, operational, financial, development and other
resources in order to grow organically.
Arcturus’s success depends on its continued ability to attract, retain and motivate highly
qualified management personnel. The loss of the services of any of its senior
management could impact its ability to commence and sustain the LED Business.
At this time, Arcturus does not have “key man” insurance policies on the lives of any of
its employees or consultants. In addition, Arcturus’s advisors may have arrangements
with other companies to assist those companies in developing products or technologies
that may potentially compete with Arcturus’s products or technologies.
Arcturus’s CEO Robert Huston has agreed to sign agreements with Arcturus, which
include provisions for: confidentiality; non-disclosure; intellectual property rights; and
non-competition, covering its intellectual property and other proprietary information.
When signed, these agreements will only be enforceable to the extent allowed by local
laws.
Arcturus may need to hire additional personnel if it continues and expands the LED
Business. Arcturus may not be able to attract or retain qualified management and sales
or technical personnel in the future due to the intense competition for qualified personnel
among technology and marketing businesses.
If Arcturus is not able to attract and retain the necessary personnel to accomplish its
business objectives, it may experience constraints that will impede significantly the
achievement of its development objectives, its ability to raise additional capital and its
ability to implement its business strategy. In particular, if Arcturus loses any members of
its senior management team, it may not be able to find suitable replacements in a timely
fashion or at all and its business may be harmed as a result.
(g)

The LED Business’s success depends on the development of successful
marketing and distribution strategies and capabilities

If Arcturus is unable to develop its sales and marketing and distribution capability on its
own or through collaborations with marketing partners, it will not be successful in
developing the LED Business. Arcturus currently does not have marketing staff or a
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sales or distribution organization. Arcturus currently has limited internal marketing, sales
and distribution capabilities and plans to rely on web based direct sales. Ineffectual
implementation its website either by Arcturus or its third party partners can have an
adverse effect on Arcturus’s ability to sell.
In the future Arcturus may establish a sales and marketing organization with technical
expertise and supporting distribution capabilities to commercialize its products, which will
be expensive and time consuming. Any failure or delay in the development of internal
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities could adversely impact the success of the
potential LED Business.
Arcturus may choose to collaborate with third parties that have direct sales forces and
established distribution systems, either to augment its own sales force and distribution
systems or in lieu of its own sales force and distribution systems. To the extent that
Arcturus enters into co-promotion or other arrangements, its product revenue is likely to
be lower than if it directly marketed or sold its products. In addition, any revenue it
receives will depend in whole or in part upon the efforts of such third parties, which may
not be successful and will generally not be within its control
(h)

The LED Business’s success depends on inventory and supply chain
management

Arcturus must manage its inventory effectively, because the quantity of inventory held
could affect its results of operations. Arcturus’s customers may increase orders during
periods of product shortages, cancel orders if they find better prices elsewhere, or delay
orders in anticipation of new products. They also may adjust their orders in response to
the supply of Arcturus’s products and the products of its competitors that are available to
them, and in response to seasonal fluctuations in user demand.
If Arcturus does not effectively manage its supply chain and its inventory levels it may
lose potential sales from customers due to a lack of inventory. Arcturus could also end
up with excess levels of inventory which will reduce available capital and put Arcturus at
risk of having to record a material write-down to inventory valuations.
If Arcturus ultimately determines that it has excess inventory, it may have to reduce its
prices and write down inventory, which in turn could result in lower gross margins.
Supply chain issues, including financial problems of contract manufacturers or vendors
or key infrastructure suppliers, may increase Arcturus’s costs or cause a delay in its
ability to fulfill orders,
(2) General Risks to Arcturus as a Company
(a)

Limited operating history

Arcturus has yet to generate revenue from the sale of products. Arcturus is therefore
subject to many of the risks common to early-stage enterprises, including undercapitalization, cash shortages, limitations with respect to personnel, financial, and other
resources and lack of revenues. There is no assurance that Arcturus will be successful
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in achieving a return on shareholders' investment and the likelihood of success must be
considered in light of the early stage of operations.
(b)

Arcturus’s operating results may fluctuate in future periods which may affect
its stock price

Arcturus, if it commences business operations through the LED Business, will be subject
to quarterly and annual fluctuations as a result of numerous factors, some of which may
contribute to more pronounced fluctuations in an uncertain global economic
environment. These factors include:


fluctuations in demand for Arcturus’s products due to changes in the global
economic environment;



changes in sales and implementation cycles for Arcturus’s products and
reduced visibility into its customers’ spending plans and associated revenue;



Arcturus’s ability to maintain appropriate inventory levels and purchase
commitments;



price and product competition in the LED lighting solutions industry, which
can change rapidly due to technological innovation and different business
models from various geographic regions;



the overall movement toward industry consolidation among both Arcturus’s
competitors and its customers;



the introduction and market acceptance of new technologies and products
and Arcturus’s success in new and evolving markets, as well as the adoption
of new business and technical standards;



variations in sales channels, product costs, or mix of products sold;



the timing, size, and mix of orders from customers;



fluctuations in Arcturus’s gross margins, and the factors that contribute to
such fluctuations, as described below;



the ability of Arcturus’s customers, channel partners, contract manufacturers
and suppliers to obtain financing or to fund capital expenditures, especially
during a period of global credit market disruption or in the event of customer,
channel partner, contract manufacturer or supplier financial problems;



actual events, circumstances, outcomes, and amounts differing from
judgments, assumptions, and estimates used in determining the values of
certain assets (including the amounts of related valuation allowances),
liabilities, and other items reflected in Arcturus’s financial statements;
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how well Arcturus executes on its strategy and operating plans and the
impact of changes in Arcturus’s business model that could result in significant
restructuring charges; and



changes in tax laws or accounting rules, or interpretations thereof.

As a consequence, operating results for a particular future period are difficult to predict,
and, therefore, prior results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in
future periods. Any of the foregoing factors, or any other factors discussed elsewhere
herein, could have a material adverse effect on Arcturus’s business, results of
operations, and financial condition that could adversely affect its stock price.
(c)

Future financings may cause dilution to existing shareholders or contain terms
that are not favourable to Arcturus

It is anticipated that Arcturus will need to raise additional financing, the terms of such
transactions may cause dilution to existing shareholders or contain terms that are not
favourable to the company. In the future, Arcturus may seek to raise additional financing
through private placements or public offerings of its equity or debt securities. Arcturus
cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all.
To the extent that Arcturus raises additional funds by issuing equity securities,
shareholders may experience significant dilution.
Given that Arcturus does not expect to have any significant revenues in the immediate
future, it is unlikely that it will be able to raise a significant amount of debt financing or
such financing may have an equity component. Also, any debt financing, if available,
may require Arcturus to pledge its assets as collateral or involve restrictive covenants,
such as limitations on its ability to incur additional indebtedness, limitations on its ability
to acquire or license intellectual property rights, and other operating restrictions that
could negatively impact its ability to conduct its business.
General conditions in the capital markets as well as conditions that particularly affect
online retail companies could impact Arcturus’s ability to raise additional funds. In
addition, Arcturus cannot guarantee that future financing will be available in sufficient
amounts or on terms acceptable to it, if at all.
If Arcturus is unable to raise additional capital in sufficient amounts or on terms
acceptable to it, it will be prevented from investing in the LED Business or funding
continued corporate administration costs. This could harm Arcturus’s business,
prospects and financial condition, and cause the price of the securities to fall, or to cause
Arcturus to cease operations.
(d)

Speculative nature of investment risk

An investment in Arcturus’s common shares carries a high degree of risk and should be
considered as a speculative investment by purchasers. Arcturus has never generated
revenues, has limited cash reserves, has no history of operations, has not paid
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dividends, and is unlikely to pay dividends in the immediate or near future. Arcturus has
not yet reached the early stage of revenue generation for its potential business.
Arcturus’s operations are not yet sufficiently established such that Arcturus can mitigate
the risks associated with Arcturus’s planned activities.
(e)

Arcturus may be exposed to uninsurable risk

Arcturus may become subject to liability for risks against which it cannot insure or
against which Arcturus may elect not to insure due to the high cost of insurance
premiums or other factors. The payment of any such liabilities would reduce the funds
available for Arcturus’s usual business activities. Payment of liabilities for which Arcturus
does not carry insurance may have a material adverse effect on Arcturus’s financial
position and operations.
(f)

Going concern risk

The financial statements of Arcturus have been prepared on a going concern basis
under which an entity is considered to be able to realize its assets and satisfy its
liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Arcturus’s future operations are dependent
upon the identification and successful completion of equity or debt financing and the
achievement of profitable operations at an indeterminate time in the future. There can be
no assurances that Arcturus will be successful in completing equity or debt financing or
in achieving profitability. The financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments
relating to the carrying values and classification of assets and liabilities that would be
necessary should Arcturus be unable to continue as a going concern.
(g)

Significant ownership interest of management and directors

As of the date of this Listing Statement and including shares to the issued to Robert
Huston and Ultimate Energy pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement and the
Employment Agreement, officers and directors of the Resulting Issuer owned 5,653,148
shares and 3,280,000 warrants of Arcturus or approximately 47.84% of the issued and
outstanding common shares of Arcturus on a partially diluted basis. As a group, these
individuals could exercise substantial control over matters requiring shareholder
approval, such as election of directors, approval of transactions, and changes to share
structure. Until further rounds of financing are completed, other shareholders may be
limited in their ability to exercise control over important corporate decisions.
(h)

Arcturus may be exposed to conflict of interest risk

Certain of Arcturus’s directors and officers are also directors and officers in other
companies. Situations may arise in connection with potential acquisitions or
opportunities where the other interests of these directors and officers conflict with or
diverge from Arcturus’s interests. In accordance with the BCBCA, directors who have a
material interest in any persons who are a party to a material contract or a proposed
material contract are required, subject to certain exceptions, to disclose that interest and
generally abstain from voting on any resolution to approve the contract.
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In addition, the directors and the officers are required to act honestly and in good faith
with a view to Arcturus’s best interests. However, in conflict of interest situations,
Arcturus’s directors and officers may owe the same duty to another company and will
need to balance their competing interests with their duties to Arcturus. Circumstances
(including with respect to future corporate opportunities) may arise that may be resolved
in a manner that is unfavourable to Arcturus.
17.2

Additional Securityholder Risks
There is no risk that securityholders of Arcturus may become liable to make an
additional contribution beyond the price of the security.

17.3

Other Risks
Subject to the risk factors set out under Part 17.1 above, there are no other material risk
factors that a reasonable investor would consider relevant to an investment in Arcturus’s
shares.

ITEM 18

PROMOTERS

Arcturus has not engaged a promoter in the last two years nor has it provided any
consideration to anyone acting as a promoter.
ITEM 19
19.1

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Legal Proceedings
Arcturus is not a party to or subject to any outstanding judgements, lawsuits, or
proceedings and there are no pending lawsuits or proceedings.

19.2

Regulatory Actions
Arcturus is not subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by any court or regulatory
authority relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, nor has
Arcturus entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority or
been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body
or self-regulatory authority that are necessary to provide full, true, and plain disclosure of
all material facts relating to the Company’s securities or would be likely to be likely to be
considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.

ITEM 20

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

For the three most recently completed financial years and the period since, management
and other related parties had interests in the following material transactions:
(1) Material Transactions for the year ended February 28, 2013
(a)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in management fees to Myntek Management
Services Inc., (“Myntek”) a company controlled by Harry Chew.

FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT
January 14, 2016
Page 32
Legal*16555931.4

(b)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in rent and administrative services to Pacific
Paragon Capital Group Ltd. (“Pacific Paragon”), a company controlled by
Harry Chew and Sonny Chew who was a director of Arcturus from July 2000
until May 2015.

(c)

Arcturus incurred $24,000 in professional fees to Wynson Management
Services Ltd. (“Wynson”), a company controlled by Sonny Chew.

(2) Material Transactions for the year ended February 28, 2014
(a)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in management fees to Myntek.

(b)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in rent and administrative services to Pacific
Paragon.

(c)

Arcturus incurred $24,000 in professional fees to Wynson.

(3) Material Transactions for the year ended February 28, 2015
(a)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in management fees to Myntek.

(b)

Arcturus incurred $30,000 in rent and administrative services to Pacific
Paragon.

(c)

Arcturus incurred $24,000 in professional fees to Wynson.

(d)

On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 105,470 common shares with a fair value of
$79,103 to settle debt of $52,735 owed to Myntek. This resulted in a loss on
the settlement of debt of $26,368.

(e)

On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 328,620 Arcturus Shares with a fair value of
$246,646 to settle debt of $164,310 owed to Pacific Paragon. This resulted in
a loss on the settlement of debt of $82,155.

(f)

On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 46,200 Arcturus Shares with a fair value of
$34,650 to settle debt of $23,100 owed to Wynson. This resulted in a loss on
the settlement of debt of $11,550.

(g)

On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 202,980 Arcturus Shares with a fair value of
$152,235 to settle debt of $101,490 owed to the spouse of Harry Chew. This
resulted in a loss on the settlement of debt of $50,745.

(h)

On April 7, 2014, Arcturus issued 107,520 Arcturus Shares with a fair value of
$80,640 to settle debt of $53,760 owed to the spouse of Sonny Chew. This
resulted in a loss on the settlement of debt of $26,880.
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(i)

On December 12, 2014, Arcturus issued 10,000,000 Units at $0.05 per unit for
proceeds of $500,000. Of this amount, Arcturus issued 400,000 Units to the
spouse of Harry Chew for proceeds of $20,000 and 100,000 units to the
spouse of Sonny Chew for proceeds of $5,000.

(4) Material Transactions after February 28, 2015
(a)

Arcturus incurred $15,000 in management fees to Myntek.
Myntek ended on August 31, 2015.

(b)

Since October 2015, Arcturus has been paying Mr. Huston $4,000 per month
for management services. As of December 31, 2015, these amounts totalled
$12,000.

(c)

Since May 2015, Arcturus has been paying monthly rent of $2,758 to Rocky
Mountain Property Management Company (“Rocky Mountain”), a company
owned by Mr. McDermid. As of December 31, 2015, Arcturus has paid Rocky
Mountain a total of $11,032 since Mr. McDermid became an insider of the
Company.

(d)

During the ten month period ending December 31, 2015, Arcturus incurred
$18,000 in consulting fees to Mr. Withrow.

(e)

During the ten month period ending December 31, 2015, Arcturus incurred
$17,500 in human resource consulting fees to Golden Straw Consulting Group
Inc., a company controlled by the spouse of Mr. Withrow.

(f)

During the ten month period ending September 30, 2015, Arcturus incurred
$22,500 in rent and administrative services to Pacific Paragon.

(g)

During the ten month period ending December 31, 2015, Arcturus incurred
$12,000 in professional fees to Wynson. Services by Wynson ended on
August 31, 2015.

(h)

During the 10 month period ending December 31, 2015, Arcturus incurred
$5,500 in professional fees to Fehr & Associates Ltd., a company controlled
by Ann Fehr.

(i)

Arcturus has entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with various parties
including Ultimate Energy and its sole shareholder Robert Huston. As partial
consideration for the Asset Purchase Agreement Ultimate Energy will receive
1,500,000 Arcturus Shares.

(j)

Arcturus, in relation to the Asset Purchase Agreement has entered into an
Employment Agreement with Robert Huston where he will receive a one-time
bonus of 1,000,000 Arcturus Shares as partial consideration for acting as an
officer of Arcturus.
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Services by

ITEM 21
21.1

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS

Auditors
The firm Saturna Group Chartered Accountants LLP (“Saturna”) is the independent
registered certified auditor of the Arcturus. Saturna was first appointed on as auditor on
April 4, 2011. Their offices are located at Suite 1250, 1066 West Hastings Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6E 3X1.

21.2

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar of the Arcturus’s common shares is Computershare
Trust Company of Canada, located at 510 Burrard Street, 2nd Floor, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V6C 3B9.

ITEM 22

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The Following table summarizes Arcturus’s material contracts as of the date of this Listing
Statement:
Name of Contract

Parties

Date

Asset Purchase
Agreement

Arcturus
Growthstar Technologies Inc.
Ultimate Energy
Robert Huston
Arcturus
Robert Huston

Oct 1, 2015

Arcturus
Ann Fehr
Arcturus
Rocky Mountain Property
Management Company
Arcturus
Moses Yoon

Oct 19, 2015

Employment Agreement

Consulting Agreement
Lease Agreement
Consulting Agreement

ITEM 23

Oct 1, 2015

May 1, 2015
Nov 1, 2015,
terminating
November 1,
2016

Nature of Contract and
Consideration
Purchase of various LED
assets and other property by
Arcturus for $60,000 and
1,500,000 Arcturus Shares
Agreement to act as chief
executive officer,
Confidentiality agreement,
Non-compete agreement,
Compensation agreement
Provision of services as Chief
Financial Officer,
Lease agreement for office
location. Annual lease is
$34,750
Marketing and promotional
services. Annual fee is
$107,000 and 140,000 shares,
plus up to 2,850,000 bonus
shares on Arcturus achieving
certain sales objectives before
Nov 1, 2016.

INTEREST OF EXPERTS

No Person whose profession or business gives authority to a statement made by such
Person and who is named in this Listing Statement (being the auditors of the Company)
has received or will receive a direct or indirect interest in the property of the Company or
any Related Person of the Company. As at the date hereof, the aforementioned Persons
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beneficially own, directly or indirectly, no securities of the Company. In addition, none of
the aforementioned Persons nor any director, officer, or employee of any of the
aforementioned Persons, is or is expected to be elected, appointed, or employed as a
director, senior officer, promoter, or employee of the Company.
ITEM 24

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

There is no other material fact about the Issuer and its securities that is not disclosed
under the preceding items and is necessary in order for the Listing Statement to contain
full, true, and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the Issuer and its securities.
ITEM 25

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are attached as appendices to this Listing Statement:


Appendix “D” Audited Financial Statements of Arcturus (formerly Bi-Optic
Ventures Inc.) for the years ended February 28, 2014 and 2013.



Appendix “E” Audited Financial Statements of Arcturus (formerly Bi-Optic
Ventures Inc.) for the years ended February 28, 2015 and 2014.



Appendix “F” Unaudited Financial Statements of Arcturus (formerly Bi-Optic
Ventures Inc.) for the six months ended August 31, 2015.
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY
The first certificate below must be signed by the CEO, CFO, any person or company who is a
promoter of the Issuer and two directors of the Issuer. In the case of an Issuer re-qualifying
following a fundamental change, the second certificate must also be signed by the CEO, CFO,
any person or company who is a promoter of the target and two directors of the target.
CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER
Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, Arcturus Growthstar
Technologies Inc. hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on the
Exchange. The foregoing contains full, true and plain disclosure of all material information
relating to Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc. It contains no untrue statement of a material
fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to
prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in light of the circumstances in
which it was made.
Dated at

Vancouver, B.C.

this 14th day of January, 2016.

/s/ “Harry Chew”
Harry Chew

/s/ “Michael Withrow”
Michael Withrow

Director

Director

/s/ “Ann Fehr”
Ann Fehr

/s/ “Robert Huston”
Robert Huston

CFO

Director, CEO
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Appendix “A”
Annual MD&A for the Year Ended February 28, 2015
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ,AND ANALYSIS
Year ended February 28, 2015

This Management's Discussion and Analysis has been prepared by management as of
June 15, 2015, and should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited financial
statements for the year ended February 28, 2015 and accompanying notes thereto which have
been prepared in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles. Unless
otherwise indicated, the terms the "Company" and "Bi-Optic" refer to Bi-Optic Ventures Inc.
The financial statemen#s and management report have been reviewed by Bi-Optic's Audit
Committee and approved by its Board of Directors. All amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Forward-looking statements
This Management's Discussion and Analysis may contain forward-looking statements in respect
of various matters including upcoming events. The results or events predicted in these forwardIoQking sta#ements may difFer materially from actual results or events. The Company disclaims
any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
Background of the Company and Description of Business
Bi-optic Ventures Inc. herein was incorporated under the Company Act of British Columbia on
May 31, 1984. The Company is in the early development stage. Currently, management is
focusing on finding new acquisition opportunities. On August 18, 2403 the trading of the
Company's common shares were transferred from the TSX Venture Exchange to the NEX
board and trade under the symbol of "B4V.H". The Company also completed its 10-SB
registration statement in 2003 with the US Securities and Exchange Commission and received
clearance from regulatory authori#ies to have its shares commence trading on the NASD
Electronic Bulletin Board under the symbol "BOVKF.OB".
Selected Annual Information
The following table sets fiorth selected audited financial information of the Company from the
last three completed financial years ended February 28:

Total assets
Net loss

February 28,
2014
$

February 28,
2013
$

February 28,
2013

281,776

3,764

6,876

{124,36)

(174,101)

(394,9$8

Basic and diluted loss per share
Results of Operations
The Company recorded a net loss for the year ended February 28, 2015 of $394,988 or $0.08
per share compared with a net loss of $124,536 or $0.~6 per share for the year ended February
28, 2014. The increase was mainly due to an increase in consulting and management fees,
professional fees, travel and promotion, and the loss on settlement of related party debt in the

BI-OPTIC VENTURES fNC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended February 28, 2015

amount of $197,698. The Company has operating losses since inception totaling $5,664,122 to
February 28, 2015.
Summary of Quarterly Results
The following is a summary of the Company's financial results for the eight mast recently
completed quarters.
Q4
2015
$

Q3
2015
$

Q2
2015
$

Q'i
2015
$

--

—

--

—

(76,429)

(38,751}

(44,128}

(235,680)

(D.02)

(0.07)

X0.02)

X0.09)

Q4
2014
$

Q3
20'i 4
$

Q2
2014
$

Q1
2014
$

—

—

—

--

X27,724}

(31,947)

(31,979)

(0.02)

(n.02}

Revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

Revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted foss per share

_

(0.~1~_

_

X32,886)
(0.02)

Over the past eight fiscal quarters there have been no trends in revenues or expenses as the
Company has not commenced sales operations and the expenditures are based on the leve{ of
the Company's activities which are varied from a quarter to quarter basis. The quarter ended
February 28, 2015 includes increased consulting and Legal fees incurred. The quarter ended
May 31, 2014 includes a $197,697 loss on the settlement of rela#ed party debt.
Investor Relations
The amounts in investor and public relations are comprised of promotional expenses of the
Company and do not relate to investor relations activities. The directors and officers of the
Company are generally responsible far this role for fihe Company. The Company has not
retained a third party to handle any external promotional activities.
Faurth Quaver
See summary of quarterly results above.

BI-~RTIC VENTURES INC.
N~ANAGEfliIENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended February 28, 2075

Related Party Transactions
(a} During the year ended February 28, 2015, the Company incurred $30,000 {2014 - $30,000)
in management fees to a company controlled by the President of the Company. As at
February 28, 2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $10,500(2014- $nil).
(b) During the year ended February 28, 20'!5, the Company incurred $3 ,000 X2014 - $30,000)
in rent and administrative services to a company controlled by the President and a director
of the Company. As at February 28, 2D15, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of
$19,500 ~2~14 - $nil}.
(c) During the year ended February 28, 2015, the Company incurred $24,000(2014 - $24,000)
in professional fees to a company controlled by a director. As at February 28, 2015, prepaid
expenses include a prepayment of $8,40Q (2014- $ni1}.
{d) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2fl14 - $53,890} is owed to the spouse of the
President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand.
(e) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil X2014 - $100,335) is owed to a company
controlled by the President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and
due on demand.
tf) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $163,960) is owed to a company
controlled by the President and a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing,
unsecured, and due on demand.
(g) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $76,860) is owed to a company
controlled by a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due
on demand.
(hj In March 2014, the Company received loan proceeds of $53,760 from the spouse of a
director of the Company. On April 7, 2014, the Company issued shares to settle the amount
owing.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As at February 28, 2015, the Company had working capital of $235,815 as compared to a
working capital deficit of $462,789 as at February 28, 2014. The Company will need to continue
to rely on raising additional equity financing and/or loans from related parties as it continues to
seek a suitable business opportunity.
Additional Disclosures for Venture /suers Withouf Significant Revenue
An analysis of the material components of the Company's general and administrative expenses
is disclosed in the audited financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2015 to which
this MD&A relates.

BI-t~PTIC VENTURES INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIQN AND ANALYSIS
Year ended February 28, 2015

Uutstanding Share Data
(Jn October 22, 2014, the Company completed a 10-for-1 share consolidation of its issued
common shares. All share amounts have been retroactively restated for all periods presented.
As at June 75, 215, the Company had 12,842,09 common shares issued and outstanding.
As at June 15, 2015, the Company had 10,000,000 share purchase warrants outstanding.
As at June 15, 2015, the Company had no stock options outstanding.
~~Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Subsequent Events
Qn April 7 7, 2015, the Company entered into a premises lease agreement pursuant to which the
Company is to pay a basic monthly rent of $2,350. The term of the lease is from May 1, 2015 to
April 30, 2016.
Future Changes in US Accounting Standards
The Company has 1im~ted operations and is considered to be in the development stage. In the
year ended February 28, 2015, the Company elected to early adopt Accounting Standards
Update Na. 2014-7 4, Development Stage Entities (topic 975): Elimination of Certain Financial
Reporting Requirements. The adoption of this ASU allows the Company to remove the inception
to date information and all references to development stage.
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that
may impact its tinancia! statements and does not believe that there are any other new
accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations.
Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in United States and Canada
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance wifih United States
generally accep#ed accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"}, which can differ in certain material
respects with those principles and practices that the Company would have followed had its
financial statements been prepared in International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"}. The
Company has determined that there are no material differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS
for these financial statements.
Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet
effective for the year ended February 28, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 2, "Share-based Payment"
Amendments to IFRS 8, "Operating Segments"

B1-OPTIC VENTURES 9NC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSI(JiV AND ANALI~SIS
Year ended February 28, 2015

New standard IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments"
Amendments to IFRS 13, "Fair Value Measurement"
Amendments to IAS16, "Property, Plant and Equipment"
Amendments to IAS 24, "Related Party Disclosures"
The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the
impact that these standards will have on the financial statements.
Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been
issued but have fiuture effective dates are either not applicable or are not expec#ed to have a
significant impact on the Company's financial statements.
Other Information
Additional information relating to the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Appendix “B”
Quarterly MD&A for the Six Months Ended August 31, 2015
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Quarter ended August 31, 2015

This Management's Discussion and Analysis has been prepared by management as of
~Jctober 30, 2415, and should k~e read in conjunction with the Company's unaudited financial
statements for the quarter ended August 31, 2015 and accompanying notes #hereto which have
been prepared in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles. Unless
otherwise indicated, the terms the "Gompany" and "Bi-Optic" refer to Bi-Optic Ventures Inc.
The financial statements and management report have been reviewed by Bi-Optic's Audi#
Committee and approved by its Board of Directors. All amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Forward-looking statements
This Management's Discussion and Analysis may contain forward-looking statements in respect
of various matters including upcoming events. The results or events predicted in these forwardlooking statements may differ materially from actual results or events. The Company disclaims
any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
Material Event
tin October 1, 2015, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with Growthstar
Technologies Inc., Ultimate Energy Savings Canada Inc., and Robert Huston (the "Vendors").
The Vendors operate a business in which they develop and market LED lighting technology, for
use by the agricultural industry, retail consumers, wholesale buyers and government agencies.
The Company will acquire the accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, and intellectual
property from the Vendors by paying $60,00 and issuing 1,500,000 common shares. Subject to
regulatory approvals, the Company intends to voluntarily delist from the TSX Venture Exchange,
submit an application for listing on the Canadian Securities Exchange, and change ifis name to
Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc. upon closing of this acquisition.

Background of the Company and Description of Business
Bi-Optic Ventures Inc. herein was incorporated under the Company Act of British Columbia on
May 37, 1984. The Company is in the early development stage. Currently, management is
focusing on finding new acquisition opportunities. On August 18, 2043 the trading of the
Company's common shares were transferred from the TSX Venture Exchange to the NEX
board and trade under the symbol of "BQV.H". The Company also completed its 10-SB
registration statement in 2003 with the US Securities and Exchange Commission and received
clearance from regulatory authorities to have its shares commence trading on the NASD
Electronic Bulletin Board under the symbol "BUVKF.t7B".
Results of Operations
The Company recorded a net loss for the six months ended August 31, 2015 of $138,912 or
$0.01 per share compared with a net loss of $279,808 or $0.~1 per share for the six months
ended August 31, 2014. The decrease was mainly due to the loss on settlement of related party
debt in the amount of $197,697 recorded in the six months ended August 31, 2U14 offset by
increases in consulting fees and professional fees for the six months ended August 31, 2015.
The Company has operating losses since inception totaling $5,803,034 to August 31, 20 5.
'i ~~'age

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
NIANAGE~UIENT'S DISCUSSIt3N AND ANALYSIS
Quarter ended August 31, 2015

Summary of Quarterly Results
The following is a summary of the Company's financial results for the eight most recently
comple#ed quarters.

Revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

Revenue
Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

_

Q2
2016
$
-.

Q1
2016
$
_

Q4
2015
$
_

Q3
2015
$
_

(45,269)

(93,643)

(76,429)

(38,751)

0.4(J~

Q.01

(0.02)

(0.01)

Q2
215
$
-

Q1
2015
$
_

Q4
2014
$
_

Q3
2014
$
_

~44,~28~

(235,680}

(27,724)

(31,947)

(0.02)

(0.09)

(0.01)

(0.02)

Over the past eight fiscal quarters there have been no trends in revenues ar expenses as the
Company has business operations and the expenditures are based on the level of the
Company's activities which are varied from a quarter to quarter basis. The quarters ended
May 31, 2015 and February 28, 207 5, include increased consulting and legal fees incurred. The
quarter ended May 31, 2014 includes a $197,697 loss on the settlement of related party debt.
Invesfor Relations
The amounts in investor and public relations are comprised of promotional expenses of the
Company and do not relate to investor relations activities. The directors and officers of the
Company are generally responsible for this role for the Company. The Company has not
retained a third party to handle any external promotional activities.
Re/afed Party Transactions
(a) As at August 31, 2015, the amount of $3,750 (February 28, 2415 - $nil) is owed to a
company controlled by the President of the Company which is non-interest bearing,
unsecured, and due on demand.
(b) As at August 31, 2015, the amount of $4,200 (February 28, 2015 - $nil} is ovred to a
company controlled by a former director of the Company which is non-interest bearing,
unsecured, and due on demand.
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B!-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Quarter ended August 31, 2015

(c) During the six months ended August 3~, 2075, the Company incurred $15,000 (2014
$15,000) in management fees to a company controlled by the President of the Company.
As at August 31, 2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $nil (February 28, 2015
$10,500}.
{d) During the six months ended August 31, 2015, the Company incurred $15,000 {2014 $15,{?00} in rent and administrative services to a company controlled by the President and
a director of the Company. As at August 31, 2x15, prepaid expenses include a prepayment
of $7 7,400 (February 28, 2015 - $7 9,500).
{e} During the six months ended August 31, 2015, the Company incurred $12,000 (2014 $12,000} in professional fees to a company controlled by a director. As at August 31, 2015,
prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $nil (February 28, 2015 - $8,400).
(f) 4n April 7, 2014, the Company issued 1,054,700 shares of common stock with a fair value
of $79,102 to settle debt of $52,735 owed to a company controlled by the President of the
Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,367 for the six months ended
August 31, 2Q14.
(g) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 3,286,200 shares of common stock with a fair value
of $246,465 to settle debt of $1X4,310 owed to a company controlled by the Presiders# and
a direc#or of the Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $82,155 for fihe
six months ended August 31, 214.
(h} On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 462,000 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$34,650 to settle debt of $23,10 owed to a company controlled by a director of the
Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement on debt of $11,550 for the six months
ended August 31, 2014.
(i) On April 7, 2Q14, the Company issued 2,029,80Q shares of common stock with a fair value
of $152,236 to settle debt of $101,491 owed to the spouse oi~ the President of the
Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $50,745 for the six months ended
August 31, 2014.
{j}

On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 1,075,200 shares of common stock with a fair value
of $80,640 to settle debt of $53,760 owed to the spouse of a director of the Company. This
resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,880 for the six months ended August 31,
2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
As at August 31, 2015, the Company had working capital of $97,080 as compared to working
capital of $235,815 as at February 28, 2015. The Company will need to continue to rely on
raising additional equity financing and/or loans from related parties as it continues to seek a
suitable business opportunity.
Additional Disclosures for Venture Issuers Without Significant Revenue
An analysis of the material components of the Company's general and administrative expenses
is disclosed in the unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended August 3~, 2015 to
which this MD&A relates.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES 1NC.
IVIANAGENiENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Quarter ended August 31, 2015

Oufstandir~g Share Data
As at October 30, 2015, the Company had 12,842,009 common shares issued and outstanding.
As at {~ctober 30, 2015, fihe Company had 10,000,000 share purchase warrants outstanding.
As at October 3Q, 2015, the Company had no stock options outstanding.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Future changes in U5 Accounting Standards
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that
may impact its financial sta#emerats and does not believe that there are any other new
accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations.
Differences Between Generally Accepfed Accounting Principles in United Stafes and Canada
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States
generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"}, which can differ in certain material
respects with those principles and practices that the Company would have followed had its
financial statements been prepared in International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"}. The
Company has determined that there are no material differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS
for these #financial statements.
Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet
effective for the period ended August 31, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing #hese
financial statements.
New standard IFRS 9, "FinanciaE Instruments"
Amendment to IAS 1, "Presentation of Financial Statements"
The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the
impact that these standards will have on the financial statements.
Other accounting s#andards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been
issued but have future effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company's financial statements.
Other Information
Additional information relating to the Company is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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(b)

was subject to an event that resulted, after the director ceased to be a director or executive
officer of the company being the subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an
order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities
legislation, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; or

(c)

within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver,
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Individual Bankruptcies
To the knowledge of the Company, no director or proposed director of the Company has, within the ten
years prior to the date of this Circular, become bankrupt or made a proposal under any legislation relating
to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise
with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of that
individual.
Penalties o~~ Sanctions
To the knowledge of the Company, no proposed director of the Company has been subject to any
penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory
authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority, or has been
subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be
considered important to a reasonable securityholder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed director.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
(For the financial year ended February 28,2015)
For purposes of this Information Circular, "named executive officer" of the Company means an
individual who, at any tune during the year, was:
(a)

the Company's chief executive officer("CEO");

(b)

the Company's chief financial officer ("CFO");

(c)

each of the Company's three most highly compensated executive officers, or the three most
highly compensated individuals acting in a similar capacity, other than the CEO and CFO, at
the end of the most recently completed financial year and whose total compensation was,
individually, more than $150,000 for that financial year; and

(d)

each individual who would be a named executive officer under paragraph (c) but for the fact
that the individual was neither an executive officer of the Company, nor acting in a similar
capacity, at the end of the most recently completed financial year;

(each a "Named Executive Officer" or "NEO").
Based on the foregoing definition, during the last completed financial year of the Company, there was one
(1) Named Executive Officer, namely, its President, CFO, and former CEO, Harry Chew.

-7 Compensation Discussion and Analysis
In assessing the compensation of its executive officers, the Company does not have in place any formal
objectives, criteria or analysis; instead, it relies mainly on discussions at the Board level.
The Company's executive compensation program has three principal components: base salary, incentive
bonus plan, and incentive stock options. The determination and administration of base salaries or
incentive bonuses, or both, are discussed in greater detail below. When appropriate to do so, incentive
bonuses in the form of cash payments, are designed to add a variable component of compensation, in
addition to stock options, based on corporate and individual performances for Nained Executive Officers,
and may or may not be awarded in any financial year. The Company has no other forms of compensation
for its NEOs, although payments may be made from time to time to individuals who are NEOs or
companies they control, for the provision of consulting services. Such consulting services are paid for by
the Company at competitive industry rates for work of a similar nature by reputable arm's length services
providers.
The Company notes that it is an inactive business with limited financial resources and must control costs
to ensure that funds are available to maintain its listing and status as a reporting issuer. The Board has to
consider the current and anticipated financial position of the Company at the time of any compensation
determination. The Board has attempted to keep the cash compensation paid to the Company's NEOs
relatively modest.
The Company's executive compensation program is administered by the Board of Directors, and is
designed to provide incentives for the enhancement of shareholder value. The overall objectives are to
attract and retain qualified executives critical to the success of the Company, to provide fair and
competitive compensation, to align the interest of management with those of the Shareholders and to
reward corporate and individual performance. The Company's compensation package has been
structured in order to link shareholder return, measured by the change in the share price, with executive
compensation through the use of incentive stock options as the primary element of variable compensation
for its Named Executive Officers. The Company does not currently offer long-term incentive plans or
pension plans to its Named Executive Officers.
The Company bases the compensation for a NEO on the years of service with the Company,
responsibilities of each officer and their duties in that position. The Company also bases compensation
on the performance of each officer. The Company believes that stock options can create a strong
incentive to the performance of each officer and is intended to recognize extra contributions and
achievements towards the goals of the Company.
The Board, when determining cash compensation payable to a NEO, takes into consideration their
experience, as well as their responsibilities and duties and contributions to the Company's success.
Named Executive Officers receive a base cash compensation that the Company feels is in line with that
paid by similar companies in North America, subject to the Company's financial resources; however no
formal survey was completed by the Board.
In performing its duties, the Board has considered the implications of risks associated with the
Company's compensation policies and practices. At its early stage of development and considering its
current compensation policies, the Company has no compensation policies or practices that would
encourage an executive officer or other individual to take inappropriate or excessive risks. An NEO or
director is permitted for his or her own benefit and at his or her own financial risk, to purchase financial
instruments, including, for greater certainty, prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars or
units or exchange funds, that are designed to hedge or offset a decrease in the market value of equity
securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly, by the NEO or director.

~:~

Option-Based Awards
Stock options ai-e granted to provide an incentive to the directors, officeis, employees and consultants of
the Company to achieve the longer-term objectives of the Company; to give suitable recognition to the
ability and industry of such persons who contribute materially to the success of the Company; and to
attract and retain persons of experience and ability, by providing them with the opportunity to acquire an
increased proprietary interest in the Company. The Company awards stock options to its executive
officers based upon the recommendation of the Board, which recommendation is based upon the Board's
review of a proposal from the CEO. Previous grants of incentive stock options are taken into account
when considering new grants.
Implementation of a new incentive stock option plan and amendments to the existing stock option plan
are the responsibility of the Company's Board.
Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth the total compensation paid to or earned by the Named Executive Officer
for the Company's three (3) most recently completed financial years:
Non-equity Incentive
Plan Compensation

Name and Principal
Position
Harry Chew,
President, CFO and
forn7er CEO~~~

Year
Ended

Salary
($)

Sharebased
Awards
($)

Optionbased
Awards
($)

Annual
Incentive
Plans

2015

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

2014

Nil

Nil

Nil

2013

Nil

Nil

Nil

~$~
Long-term
Incentive
Plans

Pension
Value
($)

All Other
Compensation
($)

Total
Compensation
(g)

Nil

Nil

60,000~'~

60,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

60,000~~~

60,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

60,000~~~

60,000

~'~

Mr. Chew ceased acting as CEO effective Mai•ch 5, 20]5 and William A. Gildea was appointed CEO. Mr. C~ildea resigned as CEO on May 6, 2015 and Michael C.
Withrow was appointed CEO on May 6, 2015.

~'~

Consisting of management consulting fees o~f $30,000 paid to a company owned as to 50°/, by Harry Chew, and ~ fiu-ther $30,000 for rent and administrative services paid
to another company owned as to 75`% by Harry Chew and 25'%, by Sonny Chew.

Incentive Plan Awards
Outstanding Share-Based Away°ds and Option-Based Awards
The following table sets forth the options granted to the Named Executive Officer to purchase or acquire
securities of the Company outstanding at the end of the most recently completed financial year:

Name
Harry Chew~'~
~~~

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised Options
(#)

Option Exercise
Price
($)

Option
Expiration Date

Value of
Unexercised Inthe-money Options
($)

Nil

Nil

N/A

Nil

Mr. Chew ceased acting as CEO effective March 5, 2015 and William A. Gildea was appointed CEO. Mr. Gildea resigned as CEO on May 6, 2015
and Michael C. Withrow was appointed CEO on May 6, 2015.

Incentive Plan Awards — i~alue Vested oN Earned Duping the Yeas
The following table sets forth the value vested or earned during the year of option-based awards, sharebased awards and non-equity incentive plan compensation paid to Named Executive Officer during the
most recently completed financial year:

-9 -

Name

Option-based Awards — Value
Vested During the Year
($)

Non-equity Incentive Plan Compensation —
Value earned During the Year
(~)

Nil

Nil

Harry Chew~~~
`'~

Mr. Chew ceased acting as CEO cffcctivc March 5, 2015 and William A. Gildca was appointed CEO. Mr. Gildca resi~ancd as CEO on May 6,
2015 and Michael C. Withrow was appointed CEO on May 6, 2015.

Termination and Change of Control Benefits
There are no management or consulting agreements with any directors or officers of the Company, and no
arrangements for termination or change of control benefits.
Director Compensation
Director Compensation Table
The following table sets forth the value of all compensation provided to directors, not including the
director who is also a Named Executive Officer, for the Company's most recently completed financial
year:

Name
Michael C. Withrow

Fees Earned

Option-based Awards
($)

All Other
Compensation
($)

Total
($)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Sonny Chew~'~

Nil

Nil

24,000~`~

Nil

Dr. Terrance G. Owen~'~

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

~'~

Mr. Chew resigned as a director effective May 6, 2015.

~`~

Professional financial and accounting consulting fees paid to a company controlled by Sonny Chcw.

~j~

Dr. Owen resigned as a director effective December 17, 2014.

Outstanding Sha~~e-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
The following table sets forth the options granted to the directors of the Company, not including the
director who is also a Named Executive Officer, to purchase or acquire securities of the Company
outstanding at the end of the most recently completed financial year:
Option-based A~~~ards -Number
of Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options
(#)

Option Exercise
Price
($)

Option Expiration
Date

Value of Unexercised
In-the-money Options
($)

Michael C. Withrow

Nil

Nil

N/A

Nil

Sonny Chew~'~

Nil

Nil

N/A

Nil

Dr. Terrance G. Owen~Z~

Nil

Nil

N/A

Nil

Name

~'~

Mr. Chew resigned as a director effective May 6, 2015.

~'~

Dr. Owen resigned as a director effective December 17, 2014.

Incentive Plan Awards —Value Vested o~ Earned During the Yeas
The following table sets forth the value vested or earned during the year of option-based awards and nonequity incentive plan compensation paid to the directors of the Company, not including the director who
is also a Named Executive Officer, during the financial year ended February 28, 2015:

-10 Option-based Awards —Value
Vested During the Year
($

Name

Non-equit~~ Incentive Plan Compensation —Value
Earned During the Year
(~

Michael C. Withrow

Nil

Nil

Sonny Chew~'~

Nil

Nil

Dr. Terrance G. Owen~'~

Nil

Nil

~'~

Mr. Chew resigncd as a director cffcctivc May 6, 2015.

«' Dr. Owen resigned as a director effective December 17, 2014.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth certain information pertaining to the Company's equity compensation plan
as at the end of the most recently completed financial year:

Plan Category
Equity compensation plans
approved by securityholders
~gtzity compensation plans not
approved by securityholders
Total

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(a)

Weighted-average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and Rights
(b)

Number of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance
Under Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding Securities
Reflected in Column (a))
(c)

Nil

Nil

Nil

N/A

N/A

N/A

Nil

Nil

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
None of the directors or senior officers of the Company, no proposed nominee for election as a director of
the Company, and no associates or affiliates of any of them, is or has been indebted to the Company or its
subsidiaries at any time since the beginning of the Company's last completed financial year.
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
No Insider of the Company, no proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company and no
associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing, has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any
transaction since the commencement of the Company's last financial year or in any proposed transaction,
which, in either case, has materially affected or will materially affect the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS OR COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Other than as set forth herein, management of the Company is not aware of any material interest, direct or
indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the
Meeting, other than the election of directors or the appointment of auditors, of any person or company
who has been:(a) if the solicitation is made by or on behalf of management of the Company, a director or
executive officer of the Company at any time since the beginning of the Company's last financial year;
(b) if the solicitation is made other than by or on behalf of management of the Company, any person or
company by whom or on whose behalf, directly or indirectly, the solicitation is made;(c) any proposed
nominee for election as a director of the Company; or (d) any associate or affiliate of any of the foregoing
persons or companies.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bi-Optic Ventures Inc.(A Development Stage Company)
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Bi-Optic Ventures Inc. (A Development Stage
Company) as of February 28, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of operations, stockholders'
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended and accumulated from March 1, 2010 to
February 28, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial
statements of Bi-Optic Ventures Inc. accumulated from May 31, 1984 (date of inception) to February 28,
2010 were audited by other auditors whose report dated May 12, 2010 included an explanatory
paragraph regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements for
the period from May 31, 1984 (date of inception) to February 28, 2010 reflect a net loss of $4,528,347 of
the related cumulative totals. The auditors' report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
related to amounts included for such periods, is based solely on the report of such auditors.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of February 28, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended and accumulated from May 31, 1984 (date of inception) to
February 28, 2014, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has not generated any
revenues, has a working capital deficit, and has incurred operating losses since inception. These factors
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans
in regard to these matters are also discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Saturna Group Chartered Accountants LLP
Vancouver, Canada
May 27, 2014

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Balance Sheets
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

February 28, February 28,
2014
2013
$
$
Assets
Current Assets
Amounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

1,576
438

3,956
466

Total Current Assets

2,014

4,422

Property and equipment(Note 3)

1,750

2,454

Total Assets

3,764

6,876

71
69,687
395,045

—
68,289
275,090

464,803

343,379

4,808,095

4,808,095

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit
Current Liabilities
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable
Due to related parties (Note 4)
Total Liabilities
Nature of operations and continuance of business (Note 1)
Subsequent events (Note 7)
Stockholders' Deficit
Common stock: unlimited common shares authorized without par value;
20,512,235 shares issued and outstanding
Deficit accumulated during the development stage

(5,269,134) (5,144,598)

Total Stockholders' Deficit

(461,039)

(336,503)

3,764

6,876

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit

Approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 27, 2014:
/s/"Harry Chew"

/s/"Sonny Chew"

Harry Chew, Director

Sonny Chew, Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Operations
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended
February 28,
2014
$
Revenue

Accumulated from
May 31, 1984
Year ended (Date of Inception)
February 28,
to February 28,
2013
2014
$
$

—

—

—

—
703
—
38,544
—
32,923
38,941
13,016
409
—

—
993
—
40,486
—
34,326
83,456
14,630
210
—

347,815
27,652
20,658
925,915
94,268
644,867
978,579
190,048
346,422
2,066

124,536

174,101

3,578,290

Expenses
Acquisition costs written-off
Amortization
Bad debts
Consulting and management fees (Note 4)
Investor and public relations
Office, rent and telephone (Note 4)
Professional fees (Note 4)
Transfer agent and regulatory fees
Travel and promotion
Write-down of property and equipment
Total Expenses
Loss from Operations

(124,536)

(174,101)

(3,578,290)

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

49,341
52,919
17,118
(75,943)

—

—

43,435

(124,536)

(174,101)

(3,534,855)

—

—

(1,734,279)

(124,536)

(174,101)

(5,269,134)

(0.01)

(0.01)

20,512,235

20,512,235

Other Income (Expense)
Accounts payable written-off
Gain on debt derecognition
Interest and other income
Provision for advances receivable
Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Loss Before Discontinued Operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net Loss for the Period
Net Loss Per Share, Basic and Diluted
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.

16,012
16,000
30,324
50,000

Shares issued for mineral properties

Net loss for the year

(31,250)

Balance, February 28, 1999

2,079,929

-

-

60,000

315,000

1,704,929

4

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Common
Stock
Subscribed
$

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)

1,370,381

-

100,000

Shares cancelled

Net loss for the year

250,000

Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants

1,051,631

-

-

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement

Balance, February 28, 1998

31,492

300,000

1,373,437

-

56,250

1,317,187

-

275,000

50,400
29,600
97,036

175,000

690,151

38,879

500,000

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement

Shares issued to settle debt

512,752

-

30,000

482,752

Balance, February 28, 1997

Net loss for the year

Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants

Balance, February 28, 1996

-

100,000

Shares issued for finders' fees
Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants
Shares issued to settle debt

Net loss for the year

270,416

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
$
#

Balance, February 28, 1995

(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
For the Period From February 28, 1995 to February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

(1,734,279)

(131,813)

-

-

(1,602,466)

(158,322)

-

-

(1,444,144)

(424,720)

-

(1,019,424)

(266,040)

-

-

-

(753,384)

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage
$

345,650

(131,813)

60,000

315,000

102,463

(158,322)

31,492

300,000

(70,707)

(424,720)

56,250

297,763

(266,040}

275,000

50,400
29,600
97,036

175,000

(63,233)

Total
$

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.

—
—

280,000
—
2,359,929
—
2,359,929
120,000
119,263

400,000
—
1,770,381
—
1,770,381
1,200,000
993,854
—

Balance, February 28, 2001

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement

(189,545)
151,952
120,000
119,263
(452,013)
(60,798)
40,000
(132,362)

48,400
(121,340)

(189,545)
(2,207,977)
—
—
(452,013)
(2,659,990)
—
(132,362)

—
(121,340)

—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
48,400
—
48,400

—
2,599,192
40,000
—
2,639,192
80,000
—
—
2,719,192

3,964,235
400,000
—
4,364,235
800,000
—
—
5,164,235

Shares to be issued

Net loss for the year

Balance, February 29, 2004

5

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)

Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants

Balance, February 28, 2003

Net loss for the year

Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants

Balance, February 28, 2002

Net loss for the year

Shares issued to settle debt

Net loss for the year

(2,913,692)

—

(146,100)

80,000

(153,160)

341,497
(2,018,432)
—

Balance, February 29, 2000

(2,792,352)

(284,153)

(284,153)
—

Net loss for the year

Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants

280,000

345,650

Total
$

—

{1,734,279)

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage
$

—

Balance, February 28, 1999

—

Common
Stock
Subscribed
$

2,079,929

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
#
$
1,370,381

(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
For the Period From February 28, 1995 to February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.

Balance, February 29, 2008

Net loss for the year

Balance, February 28, 2007

Net loss for the year

10,012,235

—

10,012,235

3,768,180

—

3,768,180

—

275,700

919,000
—

3,492,480

9,093,235

—

247,250
(11,550)

1,150,000
—
—

232,250

929,000

3,024,530

—

(9,912)
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—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

—

—

—

—

—

(48,400)

48,400

Common
Stock
Subscribed
$

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)

Balance, February 28, 2006
Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants at $0.30 per
share

Net loss for the year

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement at $0.25 per share
Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants at $0.215 per
share
Share issuance costs

7,014,235

—

Net loss for the year

Balance, February 28, 2005

—

75,250

350,000

Share issuance costs

240,000

1,500,000

Shares issued pursuant to a private placement at $0.16 per share
Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of warrants at $0.215 per
share

2,719,192

5,164,235

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
$
#

Balance, February 29, 2004

(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
For the Period From February 28, 1995 to February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

(4,118,246)

(303,775)

(3,814,471)

(407,597)

—

(3,406,874)

(199,802)

—
—

—

(3,207,072)

(293,380)

—

—

—

(2,913,692)

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage
$

(350.0661

(303,775)

{46,291)

(407,597)

275,700

85,606

(199,802)

247,250
(11,550)

232,250

(182,542)

(293,380)

(9,912)

75,250

191,600

(146,100)

Total
$

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.

3,768,180
495,000
(19,635)
4,243,545
4,243,545
600,000
(35,450)
4,808,095
4,808,095
4,808,095
4,808,095

10,012,235
4,500,000
14,512,235
14,512,235
6,000,000
20,512,235
20,512,235
20,512,235
20,512,235

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
#
$

(6,000)
(6,000)
6,000
-

7

-

Due From
Related
Party
$

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)

Balance, February 29, 2008
Shares issued pursuant to a private placement at $0.11 per share
Share issuance costs
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2009
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2010
Shares issued pursuant to a private placement at $0.10 per share
Share issuance costs
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2011
Advance to related party
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 29, 2012
Repayment from related party
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2013
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2014

(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
For the Period From February 28, 1995 to February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

(294,713)
(4,412,959)
(115,388)
(4,528,347)
(294,893)
(4,823,240)
(147,257)
(4,970,497)
(174,101)
(5,144,598)
(124,536)
(5,269,134)

(4,118,246)
-

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Development
Stage
$

(19,635)
(294,713)
(169,414)
(115,388)
(284,802)
600,000
(35,450)
(294,893)
(15,145)
(6,000)
(147,257)
(168,402)
6,000
(174,101)
(336,503)
(124,536)
(461,039)

(350,066)
495,000

Total
$

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Statements of Cash Flows
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended
February 28,
2014
$

Accumulated from
May 31, 1984
Year ended (Date of Inception)
February 28, to February 28,
2013
2014
$
$

Operating Activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Acquisition costs written-off
Amortization
Bad debts
Gain on debt derecognition
Provision for advances receivable
Write-down of property and equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Amounts receivable
Advances receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

(124,536)

(174,101)

(5,269,134)

—
703
—
—
—
—

—
993
—
—
—
—

347,815
29,254
20,658
(52,919)
464,169
2,066

2,380
—
28
1,399
88,690

430
—
—
15,859
94,080

(22,233)
(65,447)
(437)
329,869
269,010

(31,336)

(62,739)

(3,947,329)

—
—

—
—

(362,241)
(33,070)

—

—

(395,311)

71
—
—
31,265
—
—

—
—
—
62,240
—
—

71
120,409
(80,000)
126,035
4,263,051
(76,547)

31.336

62.240

4.353.019

Investing Activities
Net cash used in discontinued operations
Acquisition of property and equipment
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Bank overdraft
Proceeds from loans payable
Repayment of loans payable
Proceeds from related parties
Proceeds from issuance of common shares
Share issuance costs
Net Cash Provided by Financina Activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash

—

—

(10,379)

Decrease in Cash

—

(499)

—

Cash, Beginning of Period

—

499

—

Cash, End of Period

—

—

—

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Shares issued to settle debt
Shares issued for finders' fees
Shares issued to acquire mineral properties

—
—
—

—
—
—

247,791
50,400
275,000

Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid
Income tax paid

—
—

—
—

—
—

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
1. Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business
The Company was incorporated in the province of British Columbia, Canada on May 31, 1984. The
Company is a development stage company, as defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 915, "Development Stage Entities". The
Company is currently evaluating various business opportunities.
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which implies the Company
will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company has never generated revenues since inception and has never paid any dividends and is
unlikely to pay dividends or generate earnings in the immediate or foreseeable future. The continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the continued financial support from its
shareholders, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary equity financing to continue operations,
and the attainment of profitable operations. As at February 28, 2014, the Company has a working
capital deficit of $462,789 and has accumulated losses of $5,269,134 since inception. These factors
raise substantial doubt regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These
financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of recorded
asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern.
2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and are expressed in Canadian dollars.
(b) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses in the reporting period. The Company regularly evaluates
estimates and assumptions related to the recoverability of property and equipment and deferred
income tax asset valuation allowances. The Company bases its estimates and assumptions on
current facts, historical experience and various other factors that it believes to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of costs and expenses that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The actual results experienced by the Company may differ
materially and adversely from the Company's estimates. To the extent there are material
differences between the estimates and the actual results, future results of operations will be
affected.
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the
time of issuance to be cash equivalents.
(d) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Amortization is computed at the following rates:
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment

30% declining balance
20°/o declining balance

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Long-lived Assets
In accordance with ASC 360, "Property, Plant, and Equipment" the Company tests long-lived
assets or asset groups for recoverability when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Circumstances which could trigger a review
include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset; significant
adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; accumulation of costs significantly in
excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of the asset; current
period cash flow or operating losses combined with a history of losses or a forecast of continuing
losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectation that the asset will more likely
than not be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its estimated useful life. Recoverability
is assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value which is generally
determined based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and
the eventual disposal of the asset, as well as specific appraisal in certain instances. An
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair
value.
(f) Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method in accordance with
ASC 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes". The asset and liability method provides that deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the currently enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount that is believed more likely than not to be realized.
As of February 28, 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any amounts recorded pertaining
to uncertain tax positions.
The Company files federal and provincial income tax returns in Canada. The Company may be
subject to a reassessment of federal and provincial income taxes by Canadian tax authorities for
a period of three years from the date of the original notice of assessment in respect of any
particular taxation year. The open taxation years range from 2011 to 2013. Tax authorities of
Canada have not audited any of the Company's income tax returns for the open taxation years
noted above.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in tax expense.
During the years ended February 28, 2014 and 2013, there were no charges for interest or
penalties.
(g) Stock-based Compensation
The Company records stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718,"Compensation —
Stock Compensation" and ASC 505, "Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees", using the fair
value method. All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration received for the
issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Financial Instruments
ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. ASC
820 establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence
surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within
the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. ASC 820 prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be used to measure fair
value:
Level 7
Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2
Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by,
observable market data.
Level 3
Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation
methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or
liabilities.
The Company's financial instruments consist principally of cash, amounts receivable, accounts
payable, and amounts due to related parties. Pursuant to ASC 820, the fair value of cash is
determined based on "Level 1" inputs, which consist of quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets. The recorded values of all other financial instruments approximate their current
fair values because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.
(i) Comprehensive Loss
ASC 220, "Comprehensive Income" establishes standards for the reporting and display of
comprehensive loss and its components in the consolidated financial statements. As at
February 28, 2014 and 2013, the Company has no items that represent comprehensive loss and,
therefore, has not included a schedule of comprehensive loss in the financial statements
(j) Loss per Share
The Company computes loss per share in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings per Share". ASC
260 requires presentation of both basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) on the face of the
income statement. Basic EPS is computed by dividing earnings (loss) available to common
shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
(denominator) during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares
outstanding during the period including stock options, using the treasury stock method, and
convertible preferred stock, using the if-converted method. In computing diluted EPS, the average
stock price for the period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased
from the exercise of stock options or warrants. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential common
shares if their effect is anti-dilutive.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(k) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that
may impact its financial statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting
pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position
or results of operations.
3. Property and Equipment

Cost
$
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment

Accumulated
Amortization
$

2014
Net Carrying
Value
$

2013
Net Carrying
Value
$

9,238
6,932

7,750
6,670

1,488
262

2,126
328

16,170

14,420

1,750

2,454

4. Related Party Transactions
(a) During the year ended February 28, 2014, the Company incurred $30,000 (2013 - $30,000) in
management fees to a company controlled by the President of the Company.
(b) During the year ended February 28, 2014, the Company incurred $30,000 (2013 - $30,000) in
rent and administrative services to a company controlled by the President and a director of the
Company.
(c) During the year ended February 28, 2014, the Company incurred $24,000 (2013 - $24,000) in
professional fees to a company controlled by a director.
(d) As at February 28, 2014, an amount of $53,890 (2013 - $43,890) is owed to the spouse of the
President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand. Refer
to Note 7(f).
(e) As at February 28, 2014, an amount of $100,335 (2013 - $66,500) is owed to a company
controlled by the President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on
demand. Refer to Note 7(c).
(f) As at February 28, 2014, an amount of $163,960 (2013 - $113,180) is owed to a company
controlled by the President and a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing,
unsecured, and due on demand. Refer to Note 7(d).
(g) As at February 28, 2014, an amount of $76,860 (2013 - $51,520) is owed to a company
controlled by a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on
demand. Refer to Note 7(e).
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
5. Income Taxes
The Company is subject to Canadian federal and provincial income taxes at a combined rate of
25.92% (2013 — 25%). The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the combined Canadian
federal and provincial statutory rate compared to the Company's income tax expense as reported is
as follows:
2014
$

2013
$

Income tax recovery computed at the statutory rate

(32,280)

(43,525)

Permanent differences and other
Change in enacted tax rates
Change in valuation allowance

50
(24,325)
56,555

4
—
43,521

—

—

Income tax provision

Significant components of the Company's deferred income tax assets as at February 28, 2014 and
2013, after applying enacted corporate income tax rates, are as follows:
2014
$

2013
$

Deferred income tax assets
Non-capital losses carried forward
Net capital losses carried forward
Property and equipment
Share issuance costs
Valuation allowance
Net deferred income tax asset

599,255
54,371
6,709
1,843
(662,178)

543,523
52,280
6,275
3,545
(605,623)

—

—

As at February 28, 2014, the Company has non-capital losses carried forward of $2,304,825 which
are available to offset future years' taxable income. These losses expire as follows:

2015
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034

286,893
198,629
408,015
299,166
225,446
112,200
303,376
156,255
184,110
130,735
2,304,825
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2014
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
6. Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in United States and Canada
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"), which can differ in certain material respects with those principles
and practices that the Company would have followed had its financial statements been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). The Company has determined
that there are no material differences between U.S. and IFRS for these financial statements.
Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet effective
for the year ended February 28, 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements.
New standard IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments"
New standard IFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IFRS 12 "Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities"
New standard IFRS 11, "Joint Arrangements"
Amended standard IAS 27, "Separate Financial Statements"
Amended standard IAS 32, "Financial Instruments: Presentation"
The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the impact
that these standards will have on the financial statements.
Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued
but have future effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company's financial statements.
7. Subsequent Events
(a) On March 24, 2014, loan proceeds of $47,600 were received from the spouse of the President of
the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand. The proceeds were
used to repay amounts owing to a company controlled by the President of the Company. Refer to
Note 4(e).
(b) On March 24, 2014, loan proceeds of $53,760 were received from the spouse of a director of the
Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand. The proceeds were
used to repay amounts owing to a company controlled by a director of the Company. Refer to
Note 4(g).
(c) On April 9, 2014, the Company issued 1,054,700 shares of common stock to settle debt of
$52,735 owed to a company controlled by the President of the Company. Refer to Note 4(e).
(d) On April 9, 2014, the Company issued 3,286,200 shares of common stock to settle debt of
$164,310 owed to a company controlled by the President and a director of the Company. Refer to
Note 4(f).
(e) On April 9, 2014, the Company issued 462,000 shares of common stock to settle debt of $23,100
owed to a company controlled by a director of the Company. Refer to Note 4(g).
(f) On April 9, 2014, the Company issued 2,029,800 shares of common stock to settle debt of
$101,490 owed to the spouse of the President of the Company. Refer to Note 4(d).
(g) On April 9, 2014, the Company issued 1,075,200 shares of common stock to settle debt of
$53,760 owed to the spouse of a director of the Company. Refer to Note 7(a).
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Audited Financial Statements of Arcturus (formerly Bi-Optic Ventures
Inc.) for the years ended February 28, 2015 and 2014.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Financial Statements
Year Ended February 28, 2015
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bi-Optic Ventures Inc.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Bi-Optic Ventures Inc. (the "Company") as of
February 28, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit), and
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perForm the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of February 28, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has not generated any
revenues, has a working capital deficit, and has incurred operating losses since inception. These factors
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans
in regard to these matters are also discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Saturna Group Chartered Accountants LLP
Vancouver, Canada
June 1, 2015

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Balance Sheets
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

February 28, February 28,
2015
2014
$
$
Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Amounts receivable
Prepaid expenses (Note 3)

208,475
3,650
68,400

—
1,576
438

280,525

x,014

1,251

1,750

281,776

3,764

—
44,710
—

71
69,687
395,045

44,770

464,803

5,901,188

4,808,095

Total Current Assets
Property and equipment(Note 4)
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable
Due to related parties (Note 5)
Total Liabilities
Nature of operations and continuance of business (Note 1)
Subsequent event (Note 10)
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Common stock: unlimited common shares authorized without par value;
12,842,009 and 2,051,219 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Deficit

(5,664,122) (5,269,134)

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

237,066

(461,039)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

281,776

3,764

Approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on June 1, 2015:
/s/"Harry Chew"

/s/"Michael Withrow"

Harry Chew, Director

Michael Withrow, Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Statements of Operations
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended
February 28,
2015
$

Year ended
February 28,
2014
$

Expenses
Amortization
Consulting and management fees (Note 5)
Office, rent and telephone (Note 5)
Professional fees (Note 5)
Transfer agent and regulatory fees
Travel and promotion
Total Expenses
Loss Before Other Expense

499
56,125
38,821
74,372
18,301
9,172

703
38,544
32,923
38,941
13,016
409

197,290

124,536

(197,290)

(124,536)

(197,698)

—

(394,988)

(124,536)

(0.08)

(0.06)

4,896,666

2,051,219

Other Expense
Loss on settlement of related party debt (Note 6)
Net Loss
Net Loss Per Share, Basic and Diluted
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Statements of Stockholders' Deficit
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
#
$

Total
$

Deficit
$

Balance, February 28, 2013
Net loss for the year

2,051,219
—

4,808,095
—

(5,144,598)
(124,536)

(336,503)
(124,536)

Balance, February 28, 2014

2,051,219

4,808,095

(5,269,134)

(461,039)

790,790

593,093

—

593,093

10,000,000

500,000

—

500,000

—

—

(394,988)

(394,988)

12,842,009

5,901,188

(5,664,122)

237,066

Shares issued to settle related party debt
Shares issued at $0.05 per share
pursuant to a private placement
Net loss for the year
Balance, February 28, 2015

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended
February 28,
2015
$

Year ended
February 28,
2014
$

Operating Activities
Net loss

(394,988)

(124,536)

499
197,698

703
—

(2,074)
(67,962)
(24,977)
(101,360)

2,380
28
1,399
88,690

(393,164)

(31,336)

(71)
159,269
(57,559)
500,000

71
31,265
—
—

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

601,639

31,336

Increase in Cash

208,475

—

—

—

Cash, End of Year

208,475

—

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Shares issued to settle related party debt

593,093

—

—
—

—
—

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Amortization
Loss on settlement of related party debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Amounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Financing Activities
Bank overdraft
Proceeds from related parties
Repayment to related parties
Proceeds from issuance of common shares

Cash, Beginning of Year

Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid
Income tax paid

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
1. Nature of Operations and Continuance of Business
The Company was incorporated in the province of British Columbia, Canada on May 31, 1984. The
Company is currently evaluating various business opportunities.
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which implies the Company
will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company has never generated revenues since inception and has never paid any dividends and is
unlikely to pay dividends or generate earnings in the immediate or foreseeable future. The continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the continued financial support from its
shareholders, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary equity financing to continue operations,
and the attainment of profitable operations. As at February 28, 2015, the Company has no source of
revenue and has accumulated losses of $5,664,122 since inception. These factors raise substantial
doubt regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do
not include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and
classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern.
2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
These financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and are expressed in Canadian dollars.
(b) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses in the reporting period. The Company regularly evaluates
estimates and assumptions related to the recoverability of property and equipment, fair value of
stock-based compensation, and deferred income tax asset valuation allowances. The Company
bases its estimates and assumptions on current facts, historical experience and various other
factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of
costs and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. The actual results
experienced by the Company may differ materially and adversely from the Company's estimates.
To the extent there are material differences between the estimates and the actual results, future
results of operations will be affected.
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the
time of issuance to be cash equivalents.
(d) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Amortization is computed at the following rates:
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment

30% declining balance
20% declining balance

D

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Long-lived Assets
In accordance with ASC 360, "Property, Plant, and Equipment", the Company tests long-lived
assets or asset groups for recoverability when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Circumstances which could trigger a review
include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset; significant
adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; accumulation of costs significantly in
excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of the asset; current
period cash flow or operating losses combined with a history of losses or a forecast of continuing
losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectation that the asset will more likely
than not be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its estimated useful life. Recoverability
is assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value which is generally
determined based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and
the eventual disposal of the asset, as well as specific appraisal in certain instances. An
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair
value.
(f) Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method in accordance with
ASC 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes". The asset and liability method provides that deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the currently enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount that is believed more likely than not to be realized.
As of February 28, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have any amounts recorded pertaining
to uncertain tax positions.
The Company files federal and provincial income tax returns in Canada. The Company may be
subject to a reassessment of federal and provincial income taxes by Canadian tax authorities for
a period of three years from the date of the original notice of assessment in respect of any
particular taxation year. The open taxation years range from 2012 to 2014. Tax authorities of
Canada have not audited any of the Company's income tax returns for the open taxation years
noted above.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in tax expense.
During the years ended February 28, 2015 and 2014, there were no charges for interest or
penalties.
(g) Stock-based Compensation
The Company records stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, "Compensation —
Stock Compensation" and ASC 505, "Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees", using the fair
value method. All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration received for the
issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable.

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Financial Instruments
ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. ASC
820 establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence
surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within
the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. ASC 820 prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be used to measure fair
value:
Level 1
Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2
Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient
volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by,
observable market data.
Leve13
Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation
methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or
liabilities.
The Company's financial instruments consist principally of cash, amounts receivable, bank
overdraft, accounts payable, and amounts due to related parties. Pursuant to ASC 820, the fair
value of cash is determined based on "Level 1" inputs, which consist of quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets. The recorded values of all other financial instruments approximate
their current fair values because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.
(i) Comprehensive Loss
ASC 220, "Comprehensive Income" establishes standards for the reporting and display of
comprehensive loss and its components in the consolidated financial statements. As at
February 28, 2015 and 2014, the Company has no items that represent comprehensive loss and,
therefore, has not included a schedule of comprehensive loss in the financial statements
(j) Loss per Share
The Company computes loss per share in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings per Share". ASC
260 requires presentation of both basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) on the face of the
income statement. Basic EPS is computed by dividing earnings (loss) available to common
shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
(denominator} during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares
outstanding during the period including stock options, using the treasury stock method, and
convertible preferred stock, using the if-converted method. In computing diluted EPS, the average
stock price for the period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased
from the exercise of stock options or warrants. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential common
shares if their effect is anti-dilutive. As at February 28, 2015, the Company had 10,000,000 (2014
— nil) potentially dilutive shares.
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(k) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company has limited operations and is considered to be in the development stage. In the
year ended February 28, 2015, the Company elected to early adopt Accounting Standards
Update No. 2014-10, Development Stage Entities (Topic 915): Elimination of Certain Financial
Reporting Requirements. The adoption of this ASU allows the Company to remove the inception
to date information and all references to development stage.
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that
may impact its financial statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting
pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position
or results of operations.
3. Prepaid Expenses
2015
$
Consulting fees
Managementfees (Note 5(a))
Professional fees (Note 5(c))
Rent and administrative fees (Note 5(b))
Filing fees

2014
$

30,000
10,500
8,400
19,500
—

—
—
—
—
438

68,400

438

4. Property and Equipment

Cost
$
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment

Accumulated
Amortization
$

2015
Net Carrying
Value
$

2014
Net Carrying
Value
$

9,238
6,932

8,196
6,723

1,042
209

1,488
262

16,170

14,919

1,251

1,750

5. Related Party Transactions
(a) During the year ended February 28, 2015, the Company incurred $30,000 (2014 - $30,000) in
management fees to a company controlled by the President of the Company. As at February 28,
2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $10,500 (2014 — $nil).
(b) During the year ended February 28, 2015, the Company incurred $30,000 (2014 - $30,000) in
rent and administrative services to a company controlled by the President and a director of the
Company. As at February 28, 2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $19,500 (2014 —
$nil).
(c) During the year ended February 28, 2015, the Company incurred $24,000 (2014 - $24,000) in
professional fees to a company controlled by a director. As at February 28, 2015, prepaid
expenses include a prepayment of $8,400 (2014 — $nil).
(d) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $53,890) is owed to the spouse of the
President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand. Refer
to Note 6(d).
(e) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $100,335) is owed to a company controlled by
the President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand.
Refer to Note 6(a).
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
5. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(f) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $163,960) is owed to a company controlled by
the President and a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due
on demand. Refer to Note 6(b).
(g) As at February 28, 2015, an amount of $nil (2014 - $76,860) is owed to a company controlled by
a director of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on demand. Refer
to Note 6(c).
(h) In March 2014, the Company received loan proceeds of $53,760 from the spouse of a director of
the Company. On April 7, 2014, the Company issued shares to settle the amount owing. Refer to
Note 6(e).
6. Share Capital
(a) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 105,470 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$79,103 to settle debt of $52,735 owed to a company controlled by the President of the
Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,368. Refer to Note 5(e).
(b} On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 328,620 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$246,646 to settle debt of $164,310 owed to a company controlled by the President and a director
of the Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $82,155. Refer to Note 5(f).
(c) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 46,200 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$34,650 to settle debt of $23,100 owed to a company controlled by a director of the Company.
This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $11,550. Refer to Note 5(g).
(d) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 202,980 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$152,235 to settle debt of $101,490 owed to the spouse of the President of the Company. This
resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $50,745. Refer to Note 5(d).
(e) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 107,520 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$80,640 to settle debt of $53,760 owed to the spouse of a director of the Company. This resulted
in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,880. Refer to Note 5(h).
(f) On October 22, 2014, the Company effected aten-for-one reverse split of its issued and
outstanding common shares. All share amounts have been restated on a retroactive basis.
(g) On December 12, 2014, the Company issued 10,000,000 units at $0.05 per unit for proceeds of
$500,000. Of this amount, the Company issued 400,000 units to the spouse of the President of
the Company for proceeds of $20,000 and 100,000 units to the spouse of a director of the
Company for proceeds of $5,000. Each unit consisted of one share of common stock and one
share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.15 per share expiring on December 12, 2015.
7. Share Purchase Warrants
The following table summarizes the continuity of share purchase warrants:

Number of
Warrants
Balance, February 28, 2013 and 2014
Issued
Balance, February 28, 2015

`[~7

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$

—

—

10,000,000

0.15

10,000,000

0.15

BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
7. Share Purchase Warrants (continued)
As at February 28, 2015, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding:
Number of
warrants
outstanding

Exercise
price
$

10,000,000

0.15

Expiry date
December 12, 2015

8. Income Taxes
The Company is subject to Canadian federal and provincial income taxes at a combined rate of 26%
(2014 — 25.92%). The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the combined Canadian
federal and provincial statutory rate compared to the Company's income tax expense as reported is
as follows:
2014
$

2015
$
Income tax recovery computed at the statutory rate
Permanent differences and other
Expiry of non-capital loss
Change in enacted tax rates
Change in valuation allowance

(102,697)

(32,280)

373
74,592
—
27,732

50
—
(24,325)
56,555

—

—

Income tax provision

Significant components of the Company's deferred income tax assets as at February 28, 2015 and
2014, after applying enacted corporate income tax rates, are as follows:
2014
$

2015
$
Deferred income tax assets
Non-capital losses carried forward
Net capital losses carried forward
Property and equipment
Share issuance costs
Valuation allowance
Net deferred income tax asset

628,701
54,371
6,838
—
(689,910)

599,255
54,371
6,709
1,843
(662,178)

—

—

As at February 28, 2015, the Company has non-capital losses carried forward of $2,418,080 which
are available to offset future years' taxable income. These losses expire as follows:

198,629
408,015
299,166
225,446
112,200
303,376
156,255
184,110
130,735
400,148

2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035

2,418,080
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended February 28, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
9. Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in United States and Canada
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"), which can differ in certain material respects with those principles
and practices that the Company would have followed had its financial statements been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). The Company has determined
that there are no material differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS for these financial statements
Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and interpretations, are not yet effective
for the year ended February 28, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements.
New standard IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments"
New standard IFRS 11, "Joint Arrangements"
Amended standard IAS 27, "Separate Financial Statements"
The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the impact
that these standards will have on the financial statements.
Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued
but have future effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company's financial statements
10. Subsequent Event
On April 17, 2015, the Company entered into a premises lease agreement pursuant to which the
Company is to pay a basic monthly rent of $2,350. The term of the lease is from May 1, 2015 to April
3d, 2016.
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Appendix “F”
Unaudited Financial Statements of Arcturus (formerly Bi-Optic
Ventures Inc.) for the six months ended August 31, 2015.
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BI-t?PTIC VENTURES INC.
Condensed Financial Statements
Six Months Ended August 31, 2015
(Expressed in Canadian dollars}
(unaudited)

BI-C~PTtC VENTURES INC.
Condensed Balance Sheets
texpressed in Canadian dollars)

August 31, February 28,
2015
2015
$
$
(unaudited)
Assets
Currenfi Assets
Cash
Amounts receivab{e
Prepaid expenses and deposits (Note 3}
Total Current Assets

112,906
2,321
24,192

208,475
3,650
68,40

139,419

280,525

1,074

1,251

140,493

281,77fi

34,389
7,g~p

44,710
_

42,339

44,710

5,901,188

5,901,188

Property and equipment(Note 4)
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to related parties (Note 5)
Total Liabilities
Going Concern (Note 1)
Subsequent Event {Note 8}
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock: unlimited common shares authorized withou# par value:
12,842,009 shares issued and outstanding
Deficit

(5,83,034) (5,664,122)

Total Stockholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

98,154

237,066

140,493

281,776

Approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on October 30, 2015:
/sl"Harry Chevy"

/s/"Michael Withrow"

Harry Chew, Director

Michae(W ithrow, Director

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements}
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Condensed Statements of Operations
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
{unaudited)

Three months Three months
ended
ended
August 31,
August 31,
2014
2D15
$
$

Six months
ended
August 31,
2015
$

Six months
ended
August 31,
2x14
~

Expenses
89
7,5(}0
18,848
14,980
3,852
—

125
9,125
$,793
16,912
7,077
2,096

177
62,211
30,284
40,012
6,228
—

249
18,250
16,580
30,137
8,669
8,226

45,269

44,128

138,97 2

82,111

(45,269)

(44,128)

(138,912)

(82,111)

—

—

—

(197,697)

(45,269)

X44,128)

(138,912}

(279,808)

Net Loss Per Share, Basic and Diluted

—

—

0.01 ~

(0.01}

Weighted Average Shares Quts#anding

12,842,049

28,420,135

12,842,09

26,786,982

Amortization
Consulting and management fees {Note 5)
Office, rent and telephone (Note 5)
Professional flees (Note 5}
Transfer agent and regulatory fees
Travel and promotion
Total Expenses
Loss Before Other Expense
Other Expense
Loss on settlement of related party debt
(Note 5)
Net Loss

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Condensed Statements of Stackhoiders' Equity (Deficit}
(expressed in Canadian dollars}
(unaudited)

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
#
$
Balance, February 28, 2015

5,901,188

(5,664,122)

237,066

—

--

(138,912}

(138,912)

12,$42,009

5,901,188

{5,803,034)

98,154

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
#
$
Balance, February 28, 2014
Shares issued to settle related party debt

Deficit
$

Total
$

2,051,223

4,808,095

{5,269,134)

(461,039)

790,790

593,493

—

593,093

—

—

(279,808}

(279,808}

2,842,013

5,40,188

(5,548,942)

(147,754)

Net loss for the period
Balance, August 37, 2D14

Tota(
$

12,842,009

Net lass for the period
Balance, August 31, 2015

Deficit
$

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements}
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B!-tJPTIC VENTURES INC.
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
(unaudited}

Six months
ended
August 31,
2014
$

Six months
ended
August 31,
2015
$
Operating Activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Amortization
Loss on settlement of related party debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Amounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

{138,912)

{279,808)

177
—

249
197,697

1,329
44,208
(10,321)
7,950

(69fi)
(2,404)
8,126
44,100

X95,569)

(32,736)

—
—
—

506
136,190
~103,960~

—

32,736

Financing Activities
Bank overdraft
Proceeds from related parties
Repayment to related parties
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Decrease in Cash

(95,569)

Cash. Beainnina of Period

208,475

—

Cash, End of Period

112,906

—

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Shares issued to settle related party debt

—

593,093

Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest paid
Income tax paid

—
—

—
—

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements)
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BI-OPTIC VENTURES INC.
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements
August 31, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars}
(unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of Bi-Optic Ventures Inc. (the "Company") should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes filed with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission in the Company's Annual Report on Form 1 Q-K for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 207 5. fn the opinion of management, the accompanying financial statements reflect all
adjustments of a recurring nature considered necessary to present fairly the Company's financial
position and the results of its operations and i#s cash flows for the periods shown.
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires managemen# to make estimates and assump#ions that affect the
amounts reported. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. The results of
operations and cash flows for the periods shown are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full year.
These fiinanciai statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which implies the Company
wi(I continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Company has never generated revenues since inception and has never paid any dividends and is
unlikely to pay dividends or generate earnings in the immediate or foreseeable future. The continuation
of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the continued financial support from its
shareholders, the ability of the Company #o obtain necessary equity financing to continue operations,
and the attainment of profitable operations. As at August 31, 2015, the Company has no source of
revenue and has accumulated losses of $5,803,034 since inception. These fiactors raise substantial
doubt regarding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do
not include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and
classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern.
2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a} Comprehensive Loss
ASC 220, "Comprehensive Income" establishes standards for the reporting and display of
comprehensive loss and its components in the consolidated financial statements. As at
August 31, 2015 and February 28, 2075, the Company has no items that represent
comprehensive loss and, therefore, has not included a schedule of comprehensive loss in the
financial statements,
(b) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Company has implemented a!l new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that
may impact its financial statements and does not believe that there are any other new accounting
pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its financial position
or results of operations.
3. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits
__

August 31,
2Q15
$

Consulting fees
Management fees (Note 5{c))
Professional fees (Note 5(e)}
Rent and administrative services (Note 5{d))

5

February 28,
2fl15
$

—
—
1,000
23,192

30,000
10,500
8,400
19,5QD

24,192

68,400

BI-C~PTIG VENTURES 1NC.
Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements
August 31, 2015
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
(unaudited)
4. Property and Equipment

Cost
$
Computer equipment
Furniture and equipment

Accum u I ated
Amortization
$

August 31,
2015
Net Carrying
Value

February 28,
20'15
Net Carrying
Value

9,238
6,932

8,353
6,743

885
189

1,042
209

16,17t~

15,096

7,074

1,251

5. Related Party Transactions
(a) As at August 31, 2015, the amount of $3,750 {February 28, 2015 - $nil} is owed to a company
controlled by the President of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due on
demand.
(b) As at August 31, 2015, the amount of $4,200 (February 28, 2015 - $nil) is owed to a company
controlled by a former director of the Company which is non-interest bearing, unsecured, and due
on demand.
(c) During the six months ended August 31, 20~ 5, the Company incurred $15,000 (2014 - $15,000)
in management fees to a company controlled by the President of the Company. As at August 31,
2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $nil (February 28, 2015 - $10,500}.
{d) During the six months ended August 31, 207 5, the Company incurred $15,000 (2014 - $15,OQ0)
in rent and administrative services to a company controlled by the President and a director of the
Company, As at August 31, 2015, prepaid expenses include a prepayment of $17,400
(February 28, 2015 - $19,500).
te) During the six months ended August 31, 2015, the Company incurred $12,000 (2014 - $12,000)
in professional fees to a company controlled by a director. As at August 31, 2015, prepaid
expenses include a prepayment of $nil (February 28, 2Q15 - $8,400).
(f) 4n April 7, 2014, the Company issued 1,054,700 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$79,102 to settle debt of $52,735 owed to a company controlled by the President of the
Company. This resulfied in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,367 for the six months ended
August 31, 2014.
(g) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 3,28fi,200 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$246,4fi5 to settle debt of $164,310 owed to a company controlled by the President and a director
of the Company. This resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $82,155 for the six months ended
August 31, 2014.
(h) 4n Aprif 7, 2014, the Company issued 462,000 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$34,654 to settle debt of $23,100 owed to a company controlled by a director of the Company.
This resulted in a lass on settlement on debt of $71,550 far the six months ended August 31,
2D14.
~i) On April 7, 2014, the Company issued 2,029,800 shares of common stock with a fair value of
$152,236 to settle debt of $1 1,491 owed to the spouse of the President of the Company. This
resulted in a loss on settlement of debt of $50,745 for the six months ended August 31, 2014,
(j) On April 7, 2 14, the Company issued 1,075,200 shares of common stock with a fair value ofi
$80,640 to settle debt of $53,760 owed to the spouse of a director of the Company. This resulted
in a loss on settlement of debt of $26,880 for the six months ended August 31, 2014.
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6. Share Purchase Warrants
The following table summarizes the continuity o#share purchase warrants:

Balance, February 28, 2015 and August 31, 2015

Number of
Warrants

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
$

1 Q,OOO,000

0.15

As at August 31, 2015, the following share purchase warrants were outstanding:
Number of
warrants
outstanding

Exercise
price
$

10,000,040

0.75

Expiry date
December 12, 2015

7. Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in United States and Canada
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"), which can differ in certain material respects with those principles
and practices that the Company would have followed had its financial statements been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ~"IFRS"). The Company has determined
that there are no material differences between U.S. GAAP and iFRS for these financial statements
Accounting Standards Issued But Nof Yet Effective
A number of new standards, and amendments to standards and in#erpretations, are not yet effective
for the year ended February 28, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial

statements.
New standard IFRS 9, "Financial Instruments"
Amended standard IAS 1, "Presentation of Financial Statements"
The Company has not early adopted these revised standards and is currently assessing the impact
that these standards will have on the financial statements.
Other accounting standards or amendments to existing accounting standards that have been issued
but have future effective dates are either not applicable or are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company's financial statements.
8. Subsequent Event
On gctober 1, 2015, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with Growthsfiar
Technologies Inc., Ultimate Energy Savings Canada Inc., and Robert Huston (the "Vendors"). The
Vendors operate a business in which they develop and market LED lighting technology, for use by the
agricultural industry, retail consumers, wholesale buyers and government agencies. The Company
will acquire the accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, and intellectual property from the Vendors
by paying $60,DOQ and issuing 1,500,000 common shares, The Company intends to change its name
to Arcturus Growthstar Technologies Inc. upon closing of this acquisition.
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